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State of South Carolina

Office of Comptroller General

1200 Senate Street
305 Wade Hampton Office Building
Columbia, South Carolina 29201

Telephone: (803) 734-2121
Fax: (803) 734-2064
RICHARD ECKSTROM, CPA E-Mail: cgoffice@cg.sc.gov William E. Gunn
COMPTROLLER GENERAL CHIEF OF STAFF

February 14, 2014

To the Citizens, Governor and
Members of the South
Carolina General Assembly

I am pleased to present to the citizens of South Carolina this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
for the State of South Carolina for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The report provides financial
information about the State’s operations during the year and describes its financial position at the end of the
year.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controls that was established for
this purpose. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed the anticipated benefits, the objective is
to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material
misstatements.

The State Auditor and CliftonLarsonAllen LLP, an independent certified public accounting firm, jointly
performed an independent audit of the State’s basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2013. The auditors have issued an unmodified opinion, the most favorable outcome of the audit process.

This letter of transmittal is designed to complement management’s discussion and analysis that
immediately follows the report of the independent auditors.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

South Carolina extends from the Atlantic Ocean westward to the Blue Ridge Mountains, containing
over 30,000 square miles. Fortieth in geographic area among the fifty states, South Carolina ranks twenty-
fourth in population with approximately 4.7 million citizens. According to the U.S. Census Bureau, the State’s
rate of population growth is presently the fourteenth fastest in the nation.

As shown in the organizational chart on page 15, State government is divided into three separate
branches: legislative, executive, and judicial. The State’s citizens elect the legislative and executive branch
officials. The General Assembly elects certain members of the judicial branch, including the Supreme Court.
The principal State officials currently in office are listed on page 14.

State government provides a full range of services to South Carolina’s citizens including educational,
health, social/human, transportation, public safety, regulatory, and conservation/natural resources services. In
addition, the State provides funds, grants, and loans to assist local governments, including school districts.

The State’s reporting entity includes the primary government and its component units. The primary
government includes all funds, departments, agencies, and institutions. The State’s component units are
legally separate organizations for which the State is accountable for purposes of financial reporting. The
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and the Basic Financial Statements focus on the activities of
the primary government.
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Additional information on the State’s component units can be found in the notes to the financial
statements and in the separately issued financial statements of those organizations.

South Carolina’s annual Appropriations Act includes legally adopted budgets for the Budgetary General
Fund and for Total Funds. The initial budget appears in the annual Appropriations Act. After the budget year
begins, the State Budget and Control Board, composed of five key executive and legislative officials, may
order spending cuts if revenue collections fall short of predicted levels. Departments and agencies may request
transfers of appropriations between programs if the transfer request does not exceed 20% of the program
budget. The Budget and Control Board has the authority to approve additional requested transfers of
appropriations between personal services and other operating expenditure accounts. For additional
information, see the notes to the required supplementary information - budgetary.

STATE ECONOMY

South Carolina has a diversified economic base, including manufacturing, trade, healthcare, services,
and leisure/hospitality. Businesses have relocated here from all over the world taking advantage of the State’s
skilled labor force, competitive wages, lower-priced land, excellent port facilities and accessibility to markets,
and, in recent years, substantial tax and other economic incentives.

Businesses continue to choose South Carolina as a place to locate or expand, and the State of South
Carolina is committed to working with employers to meet their workforce needs through state-supported
workforce development initiatives.

During the year ended June 30, 2013, total non-farm employment in the state increased by 29,900 to
1,887,900. Industry sectors reflecting gains were Leisure and Hospitality (+10,500); Trade, Transportation,
and Utilities (+8,300); Government (+4,900); Financial Activities (+4,100); Construction (+3,500); and
Manufacturing (+1,700). Declines in non-farm employment were seen in Professional and Business Services
(-2,200); and Other Sectors (-900).

South Carolina’s unemployment rate decreased to 8.0% in June 2013 (and decreased to 6.6% in
December 2013), well below the June 2012 rate of 9.3%. In comparison, the U.S. unemployment rate for June
2013 was 7.5% (and decreased to 6.7% in December 2013).

After four consecutive months of positive movement, the South Carolina Leading Index (SCLI)
dipped 0.12 points in June to 101.02. Above the 100 mark, the SCLI forecasts improving economic conditions
for South Carolina over the upcoming three to six months. Several factors led to the decline of the SCLI in
June, including a 5 percent increase in initial claims for Unemployment Insurance for the month, a nearly 12
percent drop in building permits for new residential construction, a decline in the valuation associated with
those permits, and a declining stock market index. A 0.5 percent increase in the average manufacturing
workweek helped moderate the SCLI’s dip in June. The SCLI closed the month at 101.16 in December, the
most current month available.

The number of residential closings in June 2013, up 13 percent compared to a year ago, and the
declining number of foreclosures in the state, down 24 percent in June 2013 compared to June 2012, have
reduced the supply of available homes on the market. As inventory tightens, real estate values in South
Carolina have gained ground. The median home sales price in South Carolina is now at the same level seen in
2007 before the recession. Residential building permits compared to a year ago are up over 20 percent.

The Charleston housing market continued to lead the state in recovery, with 26 percent more home sales
in June 2013 than in June 2012 and a 10 percent gain in the median home sales price. Improvements in the
Columbia and Greenville areas also helped push the statewide sales volume up 4.4 percent and the median
sales price up 13.5 percent compared to last year.
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LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

State law requires agencies that receive 1.0% or more of the total annual General Fund appropriations to
provide an estimate of their General Fund expenditures for the next three fiscal years. The State Budget Office
combines these expenditure estimates with long-term revenue estimates made by the State’s Board of
Economic Advisors (BEA) to create a three-year financial plan. The three-year financial plan assists the State
in strategically assessing its future financial commitments. The plan is updated annually and provided to the
State’s Budget and Control Board, the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the President Pro
Tempore of the Senate during the second quarter of each fiscal year.

Significant financial challenges facing state government include anticipated future spending increases
for Medicaid, State retirement and post-retirement health benefits, and elementary and secondary education.

The State’s long-term financial management practices include a five—year capital improvement plan that
requires funding to be in place before beginning construction on any capital improvement projects.

RELEVANT FINANCIAL POLICIES

The State’s legislature is required to adopt a balanced budget annually based on revenue projections
provided by the BEA. State law requires the BEA to meet at least quarterly to review how actual revenue
collections compare with its earlier projections and to adjust its projections if necessary. If the BEA reduces
revenue projections significantly once the budget year begins, the State’s Budget and Control Board (Board) is
responsible for taking appropriate action to keep the State’s budget in balance. If the Board anticipates a
year-end operating deficit as a result of the BEA reducing its revenue projections during the year, it must
reduce most agency appropriations evenly across-the-board. The State is also required to maintain a 4.0%
General Reserve Fund (the required level increases to 4.5% in 2014 and 5.0% in 2015) that can be used only
for eliminating a year-end operating deficit. If the State’s budgetary General Fund subsequently experiences a
year-end operating deficit even after applying all the actions described above, the Board is required to meet
within sixty days of August 31 to adopt a plan to eliminate the deficit and restore a balanced budget.
Additionally, the State is required to annually fund a 2% Capital Reserve to be used for capital improvements,
debt retirement, or other nonrecurring purposes appropriated by the General Assembly. The foregoing
percentages are multiplied against total General Fund revenues for the latest completed fiscal year.

Legislation also exists directing that in closing the books each year the Comptroller General shall
suspend, to the extent necessary, any budgetary surplus appropriations in a general or supplemental act or
Capital Reserve Fund appropriations if the State’s Generally Accepted Accounting Principles-basis General
Fund reports a negative unrestricted, unassigned fund balance.
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The State ended fiscal year 2013 with a positive General Fund fund balance of $1.046 billion, which
was made up of legislatively approved agency carryover appropriations of $381.145 million, the General
Reserve of $281.641 million, the Capital Reserve of $112.657 million, and unassigned surplus of $270.647
million.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

This past year the General Assembly authorized several sources of funding for the state's infrastructure
needs (H.3360). Lawmakers approved the transfer of $50 million each year to the Transportation
Infrastructure Bank to obtain $500 million in bonds, along with federal matching funds, to finance bridge
replacement, rehabilitation projects, and expansion and improvements to existing interstate highways.
Legislators established a dedicated funding source for the State's secondary roadways by redirecting half of the
tax revenue collected each year on the sales of motor vehicles, representing $41.4 million, to the State Non-
Federal Aid Highway Fund to be used exclusively for highway, road, and bridge maintenance, construction,
and repair.

Legislators authorized (S.578) issuance of up to $120 million in economic development bonds to expand
an existing economic development bond project, which brought the state an additional private investment of at
least $400 million, creating at least 400 new jobs, and an enhanced economic development project with an
investment of at least $1.1 billion, creating at least 2,000 additional jobs. Site preparation and infrastructure
improvements funded through these economic development bonds facilitated the Boeing Company's initiative
to expand its aircraft manufacturing operations in North Charleston and establish operations that support its
manufacturing activities in South Carolina, such as research and development functions.

The High Growth Small Business Job Creation Act of 2013 was approved to offer state income tax
credits to encourage those who act as "angel investors” by providing early stage capital for emerging high
growth enterprises in such areas as manufacturing, processing, warehousing, wholesaling, software
development, and information technology services.

South Carolina’s Growing Economic Environment

Over the last several years, South Carolina has continued to demonstrate its ability to facilitate expanded
economic opportunities for citizens. Manufacturing has grown substantially. South Carolina has also
experienced a state-wide decrease in its unemployment rate, which has shown that even in the midst of
challenging national economic conditions our state’s business-friendly climate and committed workforce
continue to attract investment that creates well-paying jobs.

We have seen an emerging trend of companies investing and expanding in South Carolina. Several of
South Carolina’s industry leaders have expanded and created high-quality jobs within the state. In 2012, the
State established an Aerospace Task Force to position the state for future growth. The task force is focused on
growing the aerospace supply chain for companies like Boeing and GE Turbine and supporting initiatives to
assure that South Carolina has a workforce ready for the aerospace industry.

South Carolina’s exports reached record levels in 2012. Exports from South Carolina jumped 21% in
2011. In 2012, South Carolina’s export growth ranked the state 17" in the United States. Export figures are
expected to continue to increase as Boeing has begun to deliver the aircraft made in South Carolina. The State
also recently established a Transportation, Distribution and Logistics (TDL) Council that includes strong
private sector participation. Part of the mission of this council is to prepare South Carolina for the Panama
Canal expansion, providing South Carolina with a world-class port that will have the capacity to support the
expected increase in merchant shipping.

Due in part to the State’s economic outreach initiatives, South Carolina’s total economic output or gross
domestic product (GDP) was $176 billion in 2012. Between 2011 and 2012, our real GDP grew 4.4%,
outpacing the southeast states average growth of 3.8%.

With our cost of living 12% below the national average, South Carolina offers exceptionally productive
employees at one of the lowest labor costs in the nation. South Carolina is a right-to-work state and in 2012
had the third lowest unionization rate in the nation, at 3.3%. CNBC recently ranked the South Carolina
workforce sixth in the nation in terms of quality and availability of workers, as well as lower union
membership and the success of state worker training programs in placing people in jobs.
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South Carolina’s job recruitment and capital investment from manufacturers has experienced steady
growth from 2006 to 2011. In 2011 alone, the state attracted more than $4.7 billion in capital investment from
manufacturing companies. Between 2006 and 2011, new and expanding manufacturing firms have committed
to creating 70,000 jobs in the state.

South Carolina consistently ranks high on Site Selection magazine’s “Top State Business Climate
Rankings”. The state ranked 7" overall in the most recently released 2013 survey. South Carolina scored high
with business executives surveyed by Site Selection, ranking 2", only behind Texas.

The State Budget

The General Assembly approved a budget totaling $22.7 billion for fiscal year 2013-14, which includes $6.3
billion in recurring general funds and $106 million in capital reserve funds. The budget fully funds the General
Reserve Fund that totals $281.6 million at June 30, 2013, and is available for management of revenue shortfalls.

Eligibility was not expanded by legislation for the State's Medicaid Program in connection with the federal
"Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act" of 2010. Instead, budget legislation includes a redirection of Medicaid
spending under a new comprehensive Medicaid Accountability and Quality Improvement Initiative to be undertaken
by the South Carolina Department of Health and Human Services upon approval by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (CMS).

Under this initiative, a total of up to $35 million ($10.5 million in state funding) is devoted to the Healthy
Outcomes Initiative which would provide financial incentives for hospitals to reduce reliance on comparatively
expensive emergency room treatment. The initiative also involves participating in price and quality transparency
efforts and entering into agreements with primary care providers to help meet the needs of chronically ill uninsured
patients through home visits and care in other settings outside the emergency room. Budget legislation also
provided uncompensated care costs at designated rural hospitals of $20 million ($6 million in state funding).

The State's maintenance of effort for the Medicaid program is fully funded using $105 million in tobacco master
settlement agreement funds. An additional $20.7 million is included for the Department of Mental Health for such
agency functions as client services, veterans’ nursing homes, and school-based mental health services.

The budget devotes approximately $175 million in new funding to K-12 education for fiscal year 2013-14.
Additional funding in the amount of $77 million was directed to the Education Finance Act, with $20.5 million to be
used to address enrollment growth and an additional $56.4 million to be used to increase the base student cost from
$2,012 to $2,100 per student, or 4.4%.

The budget includes a four-year-old kindergarten initiative for school districts with a poverty index of 75% or
more, excluding the plaintiff districts in the Abbeville School District vs. the State of South Carolina lawsuit, with
65% of funds directed to the State Department of Education for public programs and 35% directed to private
initiatives through the First Steps program.

K-12 instructional materials funding of $32 million was included in the budget, and $4 million of Education
Lottery funding was devoted for digital instructional materials. An additional $13 million was devoted for school
transportation for the maintenance and upkeep of the state's school bus fleet and $23.5 million, derived from such
sources as capital reserve funds and unclaimed Education Lottery prize funds, was included to purchase or lease new
school buses.

Increased costs for operating the state employees’ health insurance plan were addressed by budgeting $54
million to cover a 6.8% increase in employer premiums, and by increasing employee coinsurance payments and
deductibles of up to 20%. The actual health insurance premiums paid by employees were not changed.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of South Carolina for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year that ended June 30, 2012. This was the
twenty-fifth consecutive year that the State of South Carolina achieved this recognition. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish a timely, easily readable, and efficiently
organized CAFR. The CAFR must comply with both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements.

10
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A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA
to determine its eligibility to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement.

Production of the CAFR was made possible only by the support of all State agencies and component
units that supplied financial data to our office on a timely basis. | extend special appreciation for the members
of my staff who devoted many of their nights and weekends over the past few months working as a team to
produce this comprehensive document. | also express special appreciation for the generous sacrifices made by
their families who endured the many extra hours they devoted to successfully complete this project.

Sincerely,

Chitng St

Richard Eckstrom, CPA
Comptroller General

11



State of South Carolina

CERTIFICATE
OF ACHIEVEMENT
FOR EXCELLENCE IN
FINANCIAL REPORTING




State of South Carolina

®

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

State of South Carolina

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2012

Executive Director/CEO

13



State of South Carolina

Principal State Officials

LEGISLATIVE—THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY

Glenn F. McConnell, President of the Senate and Lieutenant Governor
John Courson, President Pro Tempore of the Senate
Robert W. Harrell, Jr., Speaker, House of Representatives

EXECUTIVE

STATE BUDGET AND CONTROL BOARD

Nikki R. Haley, Chairman, Governor

Curtis M. Loftis, State Treasurer

Richard Eckstrom, Comptroller General

Hugh K. Leatherman, Sr., Chairman, Senate Finance Committee
W. Brian White, Chairman, House Ways and Means Committee

Glenn F. McConnell, President of the Senate and Lieutenant Governor
Mark Hammond, Secretary of State

Alan Wilson, Attorney General

Mitchell M. Zais, State Superintendent of Education

Major General Robert E. Livingston, Jr, Adjutant General

Hugh E. Weathers, Commissioner of Agriculture

JUDICIAL

Jean H. Toal, Chief Justice, Supreme Court

The State’s citizens elect the legislative and executive branch officials named above. The General Assembly elects
certain members of the judicial branch, including the Supreme Court.
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A

»
CliftonLarsonAllen

Office of the State Auditor

Independent Auditors’ Report

Tke Honorable Nikki R. Haley, Governor
and

Members of the General Assembly

State of South Carolina

Columbia, South Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have jointly audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the State of South Carolina (the State), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the State’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to jointly express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We did not jointly audit the financial statements of certain agencies and component units of the State of South
Carolina, which represent the indicated percent of total assets and total revenues as presented in the table below.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors, including CliftonLarsonAllen LLP acting separately,
whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it related to the amounts included for
those agencies and component units, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Percentage Audited by
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP Percentage Audited by
Separately Other Auditors

Total Total Total Total

Assets Revenue Assets Revenue
Government-wide ‘ '
Governmental activities - - 64% 18%
Business-type activities - - 80% 93%
Component units - - 100% 100%
Fund Statements
Governmental Funds - - 17% 10%
Enterprise Funds - - 80% 93%
Internal Service Funds - - 90% 95%
Fiduciary Funds 82% 38% 18% 62%
Discretely Presented
Component Units - - 100% 100%
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We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial
statements of the Unemployment Compensation Fund, State Ports’ Authority, Public Service Authority, Connector
2000 Association, Inc., and South Carolina Medical Malpractice Liability Joint Underwriting Association, were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the State of South Carolina as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and,

where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements the State implemented the following pronouncements: GASB
Statement No. 60 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements, GASB Statement No.
61 The Financial Reporting Entity, and GASB Statement No. 63 Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflow of
Resources, Deferred Inflow of Resources, and Net Position. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and budgetary comparison schedules, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and other auditors
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information

Cur andit was condducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statemenis that collectively comprise
the State of South Carolina’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplementary information and
the statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlving accouniing and other records used {o prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the anditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
stztements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconeiling such nformation directly to the
undlertying accounting and other records used 1o prepare the hasic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, In our opinion based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and
the report of the auditors, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as & whele,

The troductory section and the statistical section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the hasic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide auy assurance on it

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 14, 2014 on our
consideration of the State’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of #s compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpese of that repert is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resulis of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read mn
conjunction with this repert in assessing the results of our audit.

Colmmbia, South Carolina / Baltimors, Maryland
February 14, 2014 February 14, 2014
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS—

Required Supplementary Information
(Unaudited)
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

In this section of the State of South Carolina’s annual report, we provide a narrative overview and analysis of the State’s
financial performance for its accounting year (fiscal year) that ended June 30, 2013. Please read it in conjunction with the
Comptroller’s Letter of Transmittal at the front of this report and the financial statements that follow this section.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis provides an introduction to the State of South Carolina’s basic financial statements, which
include the following parts: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, (3) component unit
financial statements, and (4) notes to the financial statements. This annual report also contains certain required
supplementary information and other supplementary information to aid in understanding the operations of the State.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statements present a long-term view of the State’s finances as a whole, using accrual-basis
accounting—the same accounting basis that most businesses use. The basic government-wide financial statements are
presented on pages 38 through 41 of this report.

There are two government-wide financial statements:

Statement of net position: This statement presents information on all of the State’s assets, liabilities, and deferred
inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in the State’s
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether its financial position is improving or deteriorating. However, the
statement of net position does not tell the whole story. To assess the State’s overall financial health, other factors need to be
considered such as the State’s economy and the condition of its capital assets such as its buildings and infrastructure (roads
and bridges).

Statement of activities: This statement presents information showing how the State’s overall net position changed during
the year. The State reports a change in its net position as soon as an underlying event occurs that causes a change. The
statement of activities accounts for all current-year revenues and expenses, regardless of when the State received or paid
cash. Although governments compile the statement of activities using accounting methods similar to businesses, the format
of this statement is quite different from the format of a business’s profit and loss statement. The statement of activities helps
to show how much it costs for the State to provide various services. It also indicates the extent to which each government
function covers its own costs through user fees, charges, or grants. The net revenues (expenses) column on the far right of
this statement on page 40 shows how much a particular function relies on taxes and other general revenues as opposed to
program revenues to support its programs.

The government-wide statements present three different kinds of activities:

Governmental activities: Most of the State’s basic services are included here, such as general government, education,
health and environment, social services, administration of justice, and transportation. Taxes (primarily income and sales
taxes) and federal grants provide resources to support most of these services.

Business-type activities: These activities usually recover all, or a significant portion, of the costs of their services or
goods by charging fees to customers. The Unemployment Compensation Benefits Fund is the most significant of South
Carolina’s business-type activities.

Component units:  Although component units are legally separate from the State, the State’s elected officials are
financially accountable for them. The Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper, an electric utility company), the State Ports
Authority, the State Housing Authority, Clemson University, the Medical University of South Carolina, and the University of
South Carolina are the State’s major component units. Some financial information for these component units is included in
this report. Complete financial statements for these component units can also be obtained from their respective
administrative offices (see Note 1a of the notes to the financial statements on page 70).

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements on pages 42 through 59 of this report provide detailed information about the State’s most
significant funds—not the State as a whole. Funds are accounting designations that the State uses to track specific funding
sources and spending for particular purposes. South Carolina, like other governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with financial related legal requirements.
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The State reports three types of funds:

Governmental funds: The State reports most of its basic services in governmental funds. Governmental funds account
for activities that the State reports as governmental activities in its government-wide statements. These funds focus on
short-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources. The balances remaining at the end of the year help determine
whether a fund has more or less financial resources available to spend in the near future. Because the governmental fund
statements lack the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, a reconciliation that explains the
relationship (or differences) between the two kinds of statements is provided. By comparing the two kinds of statements and
examining the reconciliation, a better understanding of the long-term impact of the State’s near-term funding decisions is
available.

The basic governmental fund statements are on pages 42 through 49 of this report.

Proprietary funds: Proprietary funds charge customers for the services they provide—whether they are provided to
outside customers (enterprise funds) or other State agencies and other governments (internal service funds). Proprietary
funds use the accrual basis of accounting like businesses use. The State reports all of its enterprise funds as business-type
activities in the government-wide statements. However, because the internal service fund operations primarily benefit other
State agencies or other governments, these proprietary funds are included as governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements.

The basic proprietary fund statements are on pages 50 through 56 of this report.

Fiduciary funds: The State is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employees’ retirement and other post-employment benefit
plans. The State also is responsible for other assets that, because of a trust agreement, it is to use only for trust beneficiaries
such as an investment pool operated on behalf of local governments. These activities are excluded from the State’s
government-wide financial statements because the State is not to use these assets to benefit its operations. The State has an
obligation to ensure that the net position it reports in fiduciary funds are used for the intended purposes.

The basic fiduciary fund statements are on pages 58 and 59 of this report.

Component Unit Financial Statements

The Government-wide Financial Statements section on the preceding page identifies the State’s major component units
under the Component units subheading. More detailed financial statements which include these component units are on
pages 60 through 63 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Immediately following the financial statements are notes that provide additional and pertinent information to the
financial statement amounts. The notes on pages 64 through 145 are necessary to fully understand the financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

This section addresses budgetary matters and provides certain required reporting information that supplements the basic
financial statements. Included in this section is a schedule that compares the State’s legally adopted General Fund budget
with actual revenues collected and expenditures paid for the year. Note 5 on page 153 to the required supplementary
information is a reconciliation that provides and explains differences between the changes in fund balance of certain funds
when presented on the budgetary-basis and the changes in fund balance of these funds when presented on the GAAP-basis as
reported in the governmental fund statements. This required supplementary information is on pages 148 through 153 of this
report.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

Exhibits 1 and 2 summarize the State’s overall financial position and results of operations for the past two years based on
information included in the government-wide financial statements.

Exhibit 1
Government-wide Net Position
As of June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Business-type Totals— Total
Activities Activities Primary Government Percent
(as restated) (as restated) (as restated) Change
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013-2012
Assets
Currentand other assets...........ccccceunee $ 9,613,883 $ 8,831,051 $ 646,956 $ 641,350 $10,260,839 $ 9,472,401 8.3%
Capital assets 14,945,818 14,847,194 72,497 54,450 15,018,315 14,901,644 0.8%
Total assets 24,559,701 23,678,245 719,453 695,800 25,279,154 24,374,045 3.7%
Liabilities
Long-term liabilities 4,488,981 3,891,594 629,150 914,353 5,118,131 4,805,947 6.5%
Other liabilities 2,591,818 3,575,176 332,158 260,603 2,923,976 3,835,779 (23.8%)
Total liabilities 7,080,799 7,466,770 961,308 1,174,956 8,042,107 8,641,726 (6.9%)
Net Position
Netinvestmentin capital assets........... 11,468,466 11,251,603 72,497 54,450 11,540,963 11,306,053 2.1%
Restricted 5,323,431 3,183,501 56 56 5,323,487 3,183,557 67.2%
Unrestricted.. 687,005 1,776,371 (314,408) (532,988) 372,597 1,243,383 (70.0%)
Total net position, restated... $ 17,478,902 $ 16,211,475 $ (241,855) $ (478,482) $17,237,047 $ 15,732,993 9.6%

Net Position

The comparison of net position to liabilities may serve, over time, as a useful indicator of the State’s financial strength.
At the end of the 2013 fiscal year, the State’s net position totaled $17.237 billion.

The largest portion of the State’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (for example, buildings, roads, and
bridges) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The State uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, they are not available for future spending. Further, the State cannot sell the capital
assets themselves to repay the related debt because it needs the assets for its operations; so it must find other resources to
repay the debt.

Restricted net position generally are available for future spending but are subject to external restrictions, such as bond
covenants, federal government grant restrictions, or restrictions imposed by enabling State legislation or through State
constitutional provisions. The State’s largest restricted balances include capital improvement bond proceeds (restricted for
various capital projects) and debt service.

Unrestricted net position—resources available for future spending without restrictions—reported balance of $372.597
million at June 30, 2013. This represents a decrease of $870.786 million over the prior year. Some of this decrease resulted
from the $1.089 billion decrease in the unrestricted net position reported for the State’s governmental activities was mostly
the result of federal and other grants-restricted funds increasing as a portion of the year-end net position, as opposed to the
prior year’s portion of net position.

The State’s business-type activities reported a ($314.408) million unrestricted net position. This balance was mostly
comprised of a ($182.600) million net position in the State-run unemployment compensation fund, a ($82.269) million net
position in the State-run medical malpractice insurance program, and a ($63.362) million net position in the State-run college
tuition prepayment program.
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Exhibit 2
Government-wide Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Governmental Business-type Totals— Percentage
Activities Activities Primary Government Change
(as restated) (as restated) (as restated)
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013-2012
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services..........ccocovrriiiicccciccnnnns $ 2,890,953 $ 2,649,463 $ 514,169 $ 449,833 $ 3,405,122 $ 3,099,296 9.9%
Operating grants and contributions. 7,328,281 7,366,197 323,321 689,113 7,651,602 8,055,310 (5.0%)
Capital grants and contributions 716,702 646,148 3 — 716,705 646,148 10.9%
General revenues:
Individual income tax...... 3,479,332 3,101,861 — — 3,479,332 3,101,861 12.2%
Retail sales and use tax. 4,268,274 4,148,010 — — 4,268,274 4,148,010 2.9%
Other taX.....coceeeeeeeeeneneeas 1,938,479 2,000,124 — — 1,938,479 2,000,124 (3.1%)
Unrestricted grants and contributions. 159 93,970 — — 159 93,970 (99.8%)
Unrestricted investmentincome... 55,534 77,729 8,206 6,044 63,740 83,773 (23.9%)
73,326 74,122 — — 73,326 74,122 (1.1%)
............... . 587,564 509,742 85 — 587,649 509,742 15.3%
Total revenues........ccoeeeiniciinenne. 21,338,604 20,667,366 845,784 1,144,990 22,184,388 21,812,356 1.7%
Expenses
Governmental activities:
General government...........ccoooeevcccnenininenenns 5,324,230 4,685,050 — — 5,324,230 4,685,050 13.6%
Education 4,229,595 4,163,313 — — 4,229,595 4,163,313 1.6%
Health and environment. 6,403,284 5,778,883 — — 6,403,284 5,778,883 10.8%
Social services........... 2,087,877 2,066,923 — — 2,087,877 2,066,923 1.0%
Administration of justice. 719,891 658,925 — — 719,891 658,925 9.3%
Resources and economic development........ 281,763 191,684 — — 281,763 191,684 47.0%
TransSPoOrtation.........ccoeceeeeeeeiereneeeseseeseseees 931,980 1,194,222 — — 931,980 1,194,222 (22.0%)
Other . 31,589 87,929 — — 31,589 87,929 (64.1%)
Business-type activities:
Unemployment compensation benefits......... — — 616,064 1,066,105 616,064 1,066,105 (42.2%)
Other ..o — — 54,061 51,692 54,061 51,692 4.6%
Total expenses 20,010,209 18,826,929 670,125 1,117,797 20,680,334 19,944,726 3.7%
Excess (deficiency) before additions
to endowments and transfers................ 1,328,395 1,840,437 175,659 27,193 1,504,054 1,867,630 (19.5%)
Gain on early retirement of debt.... — — — 119 — 119 (100.0%)
Net transfers........ (60,968) (640,774) 60,968 137,323 — (503,451) —
Increase (decrease) in net position 1,267,427 1,199,663 236,627 164,635 1,504,054 1,364,298 10.2%
Net position at beginning of year, restated...... 16,211,475 15,011,812 (478,482) (643,117) 15,732,993 14,368,695 9.5%
Net position, end of year.........ins $17,478,902 $16,211,475 $ (241,855) $ (478,482) $ 17,237,047 $ 15,732,993 9.6%

2012restatementdue to correction of an error. See Note 14, Fund Equity Reclassicifations and Restatements, on page 134 of the financial statements.

Changes in Net Position

The State’s total net position increased by $1.504 billion or 9.6% over the prior year’s net position as a result of its
governmental activities and its business-type activities. The overall improvement in the financial position of the State was
experienced through an increase in current and other assets and a decrease in overall liabilities. The State has taken
advantage of lower interest rates to reduce long-term debt through refunding and early retirement. The use of refunding
transactions has helped to allow a better position in the current and other assets as of June 30, 2013.

Governmental Activities

The net position of the State’s governmental activities increased by $1.267 billion or 7.8%. Revenue increased from last
year by $671.238 million or 3.2%, which is an increase of $397.110 million or 4.0% in general revenue and an increase of
$274.128 million or 2.6% in program revenue. Revenues that support governmental activities are derived mostly from taxes;
grants and contributions, including federal aid; and charges for goods and services. Exhibit 3 illustrates the comparative
sources of revenues that support governmental activities.
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Expenses associated with governmental activities increased by $1.183 billion or 6.3% for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2013. These expenses were mostly associated with services provided for health and environment, education, general
government, transportation, and social services. Exhibit 4 compares the cost of these services with their program revenues—
revenues derived directly from the program itself or from parties outside the State’s taxpayers or citizenry. The difference
between the two represents the net cost of these services that taxes and other general revenues financed. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013, the State used $9.074 billion in tax and other general revenues to offset the net cost of all services that
the State’s governmental activities provided. Governmental activities reported $60.968 million in net transfers to the State’s
business-type activities.

The following paragraphs highlight the most significant changes in revenues and expenses for governmental activities

during the 2013 fiscal year:

Program revenues were $10.936 billion, an increase of $274.128 million, or 2.6%. The increase was primarily due to the
increased demand for health and environmental services.

Individual income tax revenues increased by $377.471 million or 12.2%, retail sales and use tax revenues increased by
$120.264 million or 2.9%, and other taxes revenues decreased by $61.645 million or 3.1%. Overall tax collections
increased during fiscal year 2013 due to increased enforcement and improvements in the state and national economies.

General government expenses increased by $639.180 million or 13.6%, which is attributable to improvements in the
state’s economy, availability of budgetary appropriations, and increased demand for government services.

Education expenses increased by $66.282 million or 1.6% from last year. The increase is primarily the result of general
increases in the costs of providing public education. Secondarily, additional appropriations were available from
improved economic conditions.

Health and environmental expenses increased by $624.401 million or 10.8% which can be attributed to an increase in
revenue from charges for services that is driven by demand for services.

Exhibit 3
Sources of Revenues Supporting Governmental Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Other revenues

Individual ~ Other taxes 7% Grants and
income tax 9% contributions
16% 34%

Charges for

services
14%

Sales and use tax
20%
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Exhibit 4
Governmental Activities - Net Cost of Services
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

(In Millions)
$7,000
$6,000
$5,000
$4,000
$3,000
$2,000
Sl i Zai Z R e Vi
General Education Health and Social Transportation Other
Government Environment Services
= Revenues $3,025 $962 $4,178 $1,780 $747 $244
® Expenses $5,324 $4,230 $6,403 $2,088 $932 $1,033
" Net Cost $2,299 $3,268 $2,225 $308 $185 $789

Business-type Activities

The net position of the State’s business-type activities increased by $236.627 million or 49.5%.

Most business-type activities are self-supporting. The Unemployment Compensation Fund accounts for the State’s
unemployment compensation benefits in which federal grants and assessments on employers pay for the services that the
Unemployment Compensation Fund provides. However, the Unemployment Compensation Fund receives substantial
resources (primarily transfers of annual appropriations) from the State’s governmental activities. The $60.968 million
reported as net transfers in Exhibit 2 consists primarily of the appropriations and other transfers to the Unemployment
Compensation Fund, which totaled $72.8 million for the year ended June 30, 2013, and represent the cost of federal
unemployment compensation benefits supported with taxes and other general revenues of governmental activities.

Expenses for the payment of unemployment compensation benefits decreased by $450.041 million or 42.2% during the
2013 fiscal year. This decrease resulted from declining unemployment claims in the state.

Financial Analysis of the State’s Funds

The State of South Carolina uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financial related legal
requirements. Within the fund financial statements, the focus is on reporting major funds.

Governmental Funds

Exhibit 5 shows the components of fund balance for the State’s various governmental funds as of June 30, 2013.

Exhibit5
Governmental Fund Balances
As of June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Departmental Local Department of Nonmajor Total
General Program Government Transportation Governmental Governmental

Fund Services Infrastructure Special Revenue Funds Funds
Nonspendable..........cccceeueee $ 67,717 $ 8,466 $ 740,600 $ 9,701 $ 12,401 $ 838,885
Restricted........... 337,687 249,882 1,292,226 10,000 493,194 2,382,989
Committed 650,545 3,955 — 159,627 2,623 816,750
ASSIgNEed.....coveiieieeee 996,539 — — — 156,918 1,153,457
UNassigned.....cccoeueeeeeeeueen. 791,549 (30,033) — (276,644) — 484,872
TOtalS oo $ 2,844,037 $ 232,270 $ 2,032,826 $ (97,316) $ 665,136 $ 5,676,953
Change from prior year....... $ 915,348 $ (23,022) $ 70,311 $ 33,237 $ (51,367) $ 944,507
Percentage change........... 47.5% (9.0%) 3.6% 25.5% (7.2%) 20.0%
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At June 30, 2013, total ending fund balance for the State’s governmental funds was $5.677 billion, which represents an
increase of $0.945 billion or 20.0% from the prior year. Included in this total is an unrestricted, unassigned fund balance of
$484.872 million. The General Fund reports $791.549 million as unrestricted, unassigned and available with no constraints
for spending in the coming year. Forty-one percent of the total fund balance for governmental funds are restricted by
external parties or enabling legislation which includes creation through state law or constitutional provision. The majority of
the remaining fund balance is non-spendable, committed, or assigned and is not available for future appropriation because it
is not in a spendable form or is accessible only for specific purposes.

The General Fund is the State’s operating fund. This fund includes resources, such as taxes, that pay for the services
that the State traditionally has provided to its citizens. Activity is accounted for in the General Fund unless constraints
established by State law or external parties require them to be accounted for in another fund. Increases in the current fiscal
year were experienced in individual income taxes of $358.375 million, 11.6%, sales and use taxes of $134.078 million, 3.8%,
corporate income tax of $93.274 million, 31.8%, insurance tax of $4.531 million, 3.4%, and hospital tax of $824 thousand,
0.3% from the prior year. The increase in expenditures of $426.076 million, 5.1%, is below the increase in revenue
indicating a continued controlling of costs and spending reductions previously mandated by State officials.

The Departmental Program Services is a major special revenue fund in which agencies account for primarily restricted
resources used to fund program services. These resources provide a supplement for the payment of the services that the State
traditionally has provided to its citizens thus expanding services when possible. During the 2013 fiscal year, the total fund
balance decreased by $23.022 million or 9.0% from the prior year. The primary source of revenue for the fund is federal
revenues which account for $6.761 billion or 93.0% of the total revenue reported.

The Department of Transportation (DOT) Special Revenue Fund accounts for various gasoline taxes, fees, fines, and
federal grant resources. The DOT uses these resources to pay for its general operations, which include maintenance,
regulation, and construction of public highways and bridges. The fund balance increased $33.237 million or 25.5% during
the 2013 fiscal year leaving a balance of ($97.316) million at the end of the fiscal year. The increase in fund balance was
caused by an increase in funding from the federal government.

Proprietary Funds
Exhibit 6 shows the components of the net position for the State’s various proprietary funds at June 30, 2013.

Exhibit 6
Proprietary Fund Net Position
As of June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Internal

Unemployment Nonmajor Total Service

Fund Net Position Compensation Enterprise Enterprise Funds

Netinvestmentin

capital assets......ccccevceeeiiens $ — $ 72,497 $ 72,497 $ 88,674
Restricted, expendable........... — 56 56 202,698
unrestricted.......ccceeverieiiennenns (182,600) (131,808) (314,408) 202,133
TotalS..ceeceeeeccieeeeee $ (182,600) $ (59,255) $ (241,855) $ 493,505
Change from prior year.......... $ 244,741 $ (8,114) $ 236,627 $ 8,768
Percentage change............. 57.3% (15.9%) 49.5% 1.8%

The State has two kinds of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal service funds.

Enterprise funds are reported as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Enterprise funds
sell goods or services primarily to parties outside of State government.

The net position of the Unemployment Compensation Benefits Fund, a major enterprise fund, increased by
$244.741 million or 57.3% over the prior year. Increased tax collections, coupled with decreases in the number of individuals
eligible for and claiming State unemployment insurance benefits and changes in the relevant state laws have resulted in the
improved net position and enabled the Fund to operate without obtaining additional advances from the Federal government
since May of 2011. Additional information on the advances and plans for repayment are included in Note 11i.
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The net position of the State’s nonmajor enterprise funds decreased by $8.114 million or 15.87%. This was due mostly
to Tuition Prepayment Program tuition plan disbursements increasing by $28.738 million or 3958.4%. This decrease was
partially offset by positive operating results for the Patients’ Compensation Fund.

South Carolina’s internal service funds provide certain services (including maintenance, insurance, printing,
information technology, and motor pool services) and some goods (such as office supplies) primarily to other State funds but
sometimes to local governments as well. The increase in net position of $8.768 million or 1.8% over the prior year resulted
from increases in charges for services in the Prison Industries and General Services Funds and also in the Employee
Insurance Programs. The objective of an internal service fund is to charge its customers for the costs of the services or goods
that it provides. Because internal service funds primarily benefit State government, South Carolina reports them as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Budgetary General Fund Highlights

Original estimated revenues for the 2013 fiscal year were $6.088 billion. Because of continual review of tax revenue
collections and improvements in economic conditions, the Board of Economic Advisors (BEA) revised the revenue estimate
during the course of the year to a total of $6.119 billion. Actual revenues at June 30, 2013, were $270.879 million or 4.4%
over the BEA’s adjusted revenue estimate which also represented an increase in collections over the prior year of $531.780
million or 9.1%. Individual income and sales tax collections are the fund’s primary revenue sources. Individual income tax
collections ended the year over the adjusted estimate by $111.742 million and sales tax collections ended the year under the
adjusted estimate by $18.083 million.

Actual expenditures were $189.866 million less than actual revenues because economic conditions improved during the
year allowing revenue estimations to be increased after the passing of the balanced budget. In addition, $2.437 million of
unbudgeted spending was allowed through “open-ended” appropriations.

Based on the above results of operations, fiscal year 2013 ended with a budgetary surplus. The State ended the year with
a budgetary General Fund balance of $1.046 billion.

See the Required Supplementary Information section on pages 148 through 153 of this report for a detailed budgetary
comparison schedule.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

At the end of the 2013 fiscal year, the State had $15.018 billion invested in capital assets, net of depreciation. This
represented a net increase (including additions and deductions) of $116.671 million or 0.8%, over the previous accounting
year (see Exhibit 7).

Exhibit 7
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
As of June 30 for the Years Indicated
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Governmental Business-type Percentage
Activities Activities Totals—Primary Government Change
(asrestated) (asrestated)
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013-2012
Land and improvements..........cccceeevene $ 1,926,330 $ 1,910,870 $ 41,249 $ 41,143 $ 1,967,579 $ 1,952,013 0.8%
Infrastructure........cccceeeeeeecvecrennens 9,200,685 9,194,881 — — 9,200,685 9,194,881 0.1%
Buildings and improvements.. 1,128,643 1,172,558 9,857 8,694 1,138,500 1,181,252 (3.6%)
VehiCles ..o 91,305 80,842 6 17 91,311 80,859 12.9%
Machinery and equipment.........cc.ceoue. 122,036 105,463 3,039 2,179 125,075 107,642 16.2%
Works of art and historical treasures.. 5178 5,238 — — 5,178 5,238 (1.1%)
Construction in progress........ccceeeeenen. 2,414,808 2,318,758 10,116 2,072 2,424,924 2,320,830 4.5%
Intangible assets 56,833 58,584 8,230 345 65,063 58,929 10.4%
Total...ociiciicri $14,945,818 $14,847,194 $ 72497 $ 54,450 $15,018,315 $ 14,901,644 0.8%

Growth in capital asset investment occurred mostly in construction in progress, which was primarily in software for the
State’s Department of Social Services and for various facilities for the State’s Department of Public Safety and Department
of Corrections. During the current year, buildings and improvements have continued to decrease due to general aging, as
reflected in the net book value through depreciation.

See Note 6 in the notes to the financial statements on page 92 of this report for additional information on the State’s
capital assets.
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Debt Outstanding

At June 30, 2013, the State had $3.413 billion in bonds and notes outstanding—a decrease of $305.672 million, or
a 8.2% decline from last year (see Exhibit 8).

Exhibit 8
Outstanding Bonds and Notes
As of June 30 for the Years Indicated
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Governmental Business-type Percentage
Activities Activities Totals—Primary Government Change
(as restated) (as restated)
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013-2012
Backed by the State:
General obligation bonds......... $1,376,697 $1,571,957 $ — $ — $1,376,697 $ 1,571,957 (12.4%)
Backed by Specific Revenues:
Revenue bonds and notes....... 24,318 68,854 6,360 — 30,678 68,854 (55.4%)
Infrastructure Bank bonds........ 2,003,486 2,074,308 — — 2,003,486 2,074,308 (3.4%)
Limited obligation bonds.......... 2,408 3,822 — — 2,408 3,822 (37.0%)
TOtAl e $3,406,909 $ 3,718,941 $ 6,360 $ — $3,413,269 $ 3,718,941 (8.2%)

The reduction of principal on outstanding debt exceeded the issuance of debt resulting in a decrease in debt outstanding
for governmental activities of $312.032 million. Activity in the debt reported by the governmental activities included the
issuance of $424.910 million in Infrastructure Bank revenue bonds. All of the proceeds from the debt issuance by
governmental activities were used to refund earlier bond issues.

For business-type activities, the South Carolina Division of Public Railways assumed responsibility for the payment of
$6.360 million in tax increment financing bonds from the City of North Charleston.

Three bond rating services assign ratings to bonds that the State backs with its own taxing authority (general obligation
bonds). Fitch Ratings rated these bonds as “AAA” and Moody’s Investors Service rated them as “Aaa” during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013, the highest rating that these services assign. The State’s bond rating from Standard & Poor’s was
“AA+" during the same period.

The State limits the amount of annual payments for principal and interest on general obligation bonds and notes rather
than directly limiting the amount of those bonds and notes that the State may have outstanding. At June 30, 2013, the State
legally could issue additional bonds as long as the new debt would not increase the State’s annual principal and interest
payments by more than the following amounts: $37.609 million for highway bonds, $176.852 million for general obligation
bonds (excluding institution and highway bonds), $4.716 million for economic development bonds, and
$8.785 million for research university infrastructure bonds.

State institution bonds of $433.434 million were outstanding at June 30, 2013.
See Note 11 in the notes to the financial statements on page 115 of this report for additional information about the State’s
long-term debt.
Economic Factors and Next Year’'s Budget

The “Rainy Day Account”

At June 30, 2013, the General Reserve Fund, sometimes called the rainy day account, had a balance of $281.641 million
which increased from the prior year by $98.175 million appropriated by the 2012-2013 Appropriations Act. The balance is
fully funded in accordance with the State’s Constitution. The State’s Constitution requires restoration of the reserve to full
funding within three fiscal years after a withdrawal. For the fiscal year 2013, State law defines full funding for the reserve as
4.0% of the Budgetary General Fund’s revenues of the prior fiscal year. This requirement increases in increments of one-half
of one percent annually until it reaches 5.0% in fiscal year 2015.
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Budgetary General Fund for the 2013-2014 Accounting Year

For fiscal year 2014, the Board of Economic Advisors estimated General Fund cash basis revenue of $6.846 billion,
which was $456.533 million or 7.1% greater than fiscal year 2013 actual revenue collections. The State’s Board of
Economic Advisors November 2013 estimate reflects an additional increase of $92.733 million or 1.4% over the original
revenue estimate for fiscal year 2014.

Economic Conditions

Budgetary General Fund revenues for the first six months of fiscal year 2014 were $3.647 billion, an increase of $91.496
million or 2.6% over the same period for fiscal year 2013. Total individual income taxes collected have increased $524.243
million or 16.9% over the same period in the prior year. Sales taxes have also increased $93.404 million or 4.0% from fiscal
year 2013.

Individual Income Taxes
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Requests for Information

The primary purpose of this financial report is to provide South Carolina’s citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the State’s finances and to demonstrate the State’s accountability for the money it
receives. Please address any questions concerning information in this report to:

Office of the Comptroller General
ATTN: Chief of Staff

1200 Senate Street

305 Wade Hampton Office Building
Columbia, South Carolina 29201

34



State of South Carolina

35



State of South Carolina

36



State of South Carolina

BASIC
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




State of South Carolina

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2013

(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents....

Investments

Invested securities lending collateral..........................

Receivables, net:
Accounts..
Contributions..
Participants
Accrued interest....
Income taxes
Sales and other taxes
Student accounts
Patient accounts...
Loans and notes
Assessments

Due from Federal government and other grantors......

Internal balances

Due from component units..
Due from primary government

Inventories
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents..

Investments
Accounts receivable
Loans receivable...

Deferred charges....
Investment in joint venture

Capital assets-nondepreciable..
Capital assets-depreciable, net
Total assets.........cee.ee

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Accumulated decrease in

fair value of hedging derivatives.............cccoocveiiinennne

Total deferred outflows

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and related expenses

Accrued interest payable
Retainages payable....
Tax refunds payable....

Payables-aid to individuals/families..
Prizes payable............c......
Unemployment benefits payable.
Intergovernmental payables.

Tuition benefits payable
Due to component units

Due to primary government..

Due to fiduciary funds.....

Unearned revenues and deferred credits

Deposits

Amounts held in custody for others...
Securities lending collateral

Liabilities payable from restricted assets:

Accrued interest payable....

Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year.........
Due in more than one year....

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Accumulated increase in

fair value of hedging derivatives...
Total deferred outflows

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Governmental Business-type COMPONENT
Activities Activities Totals UNITS
$ 5,258,725 $ 303,126 5,561,851 $ 1,838,805
491,016 108,306 599,322 1,276,058
10,311 4,372 14,683 2,692
405,886 27,134 433,020 414,354
1,070 — 1,070 101,821
— 5,226 5,226 —
15,357 252 15,609 7,230
420,196 — 420,196 —
555,893 — 555,893 —
25 — 25 52,622
15,357 — 15,357 209,555
516,120 — 516,120 118,754
— 114,428 114,428 —
642,587 4,176 646,763 112,878
17,139 (17,139) — —
49,849 — 49,849 —
— — — 243,053
34,858 2,936 37,794 702,776
793,700 86,715 880,415 1,283,433
— — — 1,639,267
247,989 — 247,989 —
— 3,208 3,208 671,059
76,722 200 76,922 8,698
47,027 318 47,345 66,415
1,140 3,698 4,838 881,728
12,916 — 12,916 818,347
— — — 8,124
4,284,434 50,597 4,335,031 2,895,187
10,661,384 21,900 10,683,284 8,851,683
24,559,701 719,453 25,279,154 22,204,539
_ — — 40,384
— — — 40,384
$ 544,742 $ 755 545,497 $ 449,791
137,463 609 138,072 163,598
13,339 — 13,339 129,992
1,153 — 1,153 10,593
707,257 17,536 724,793 —
8,933 — 8,933 —
— — — 26,892
— 6,812 6,812 —
356,651 19,011 375,662 436
— 182,061 182,061 —
243,053 — 243,053 —
— — — 49,849
11,717 — 11,717 —
394,355 5,730 400,085 1,284,142
— — — 19,980
— — — 27,139
34,891 4,610 39,501 9,030
30,859 51 30,910 —
— 94,983 94,983 20,905
107,405 — 107,405 824,234
972,708 81,927 1,054,635 559,175
3,516,273 547,223 4,063,496 8,517,025
7,080,799 961,308 8,042,107 12,092,781
_ — — 3,423
— p— — 3,423
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Exhibit A-1

Governmental Business-type COMPONENT
Activities Activities Totals UNITS
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital @ssets.........ccccvcvevvvevivennnen. 11,468,466 72,497 11,540,963 4,589,150
Restricted:
Expendable:
Education.. 280,902 56 280,958 826,750
Health........ 306,059 — 306,059 —
Transportation. 445,033 — 445,033 472
Capital projects 243,965 — 243,965 454,474
Debt service 866,266 — 866,266 327,163
Loan programs 29,653 — 29,653 322,153
Waste management 520 — 520 —
Insurance programs.. . 185,906 — 185,906 —
Other...... et 2,956,070 — 2,956,070 2,675
— — — 945,791
9,057 — 9,057 —
Unrestricted... 687,005 (314,408) 372,597 2,680,091
Total net position (defiCit)........ccocvnviniiiiiinns $ 17,478,902 $ (241,855) $ 17,237,047 $ 10,148,719

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants and Revenues
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions (Expenses)
Functions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government..........cccocvveveeneenineennenne $ 5,324,230 $ 2,339,634 $ 598,204 $ 87,126 $  (2,299,266)
Education................. . 4,229,595 53,843 903,578 4,570 (3,267,604)
Health and environment.............cccocvvevinennne 6,403,284 271,609 3,885,583 20,829 (2,225,263)
SOCial SEIVICES.......eiiiiiieiiiieiieesee s 2,087,877 14,103 1,765,554 58 (308,162)
Administration of justice . 719,891 65,657 11,400 43,409 (599,425)
Resources and economic development........ 281,763 60,571 56,800 6,050 (158,342)
Transportation...........cueeevveeenieeesiieee e sines 931,980 85,536 107,162 554,660 (184,622)
Unallocated interest expense.............cccoeuee... 31,589 — — — (31,589)
Total governmental activities................... 20,010,209 2,890,953 7,328,281 716,702 (9,074,273)
Business-type activities:
Unemployment compensation benefits......... 616,064 467,256 320,482 — 171,674
Other enterprise activities...........c.cccceveeninene 54,061 46,913 2,839 3 (4,306)
Total business-type activities.................. 670,125 514,169 323,321 3 167,368
Total primary government..................... $ 20,680,334 $ 3405122 $ 7,651,602 $ 716,705 _$  (8,906,905)
Component units:
Public Service Authority...........ccovevriinienennnnn. 1,804,871 1,887,797 1,926 — 84,852
Medical University of South Carolina................. 1,850,245 1,724,344 173,721 38,641 86,461
University of South Carolina.............cccceevvennennns 1,281,265 1,008,288 314,056 16,520 57,599
Clemson UNIVErSity........cceeeverieeieenieireeieee 733,094 543,456 249,484 33,128 92,974
State Ports AUhOTIY..........cccvveiiiiiiiiiciiecice 135,902 135,838 3,893 2,984 6,813
Housing AULNOFItY.........coveiieiniciieieeec e 242,279 102,671 147,653 — 8,045
Other. ..ot 2,958,825 2,310,475 694,676 77,562 123,888

Total component units. $ 9,006,481 $ 7,712,869 $ 1,585,409 $ 168,835 $ 460,632
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Exhibit A-2

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Changes in net position:
Net reVeNUES (EXPENSES) ...ccvvvreiriieeeiiieeiireesieeesiieessreeesreeesieee s $ (9,074,273) $ 167,368 $ (8,906,905) $ 460,632
General revenues:
Taxes:
INdividual INCOME.......ouviiiiiiie it 3,479,332 — 3,479,332 —
Retail sales and USE..........ccoiuiiiiiiiiiiiie e 4,268,274 — 4,268,274 —
COrpOrate INCOME. .......eiriiiiiiiie ettt 386,847 — 386,847 —
Gas and MOtOr VENICIE...........uuveieiiieiieeeieeeieeeieeeveeebeee v beaebeeaaees 557,209 — 557,209 —
LTS UL =T g (o7 TN 139,240 — 139,240 —
Hospital. 263,435 — 263,435 —
(@1 1T SRR 591,748 — 591,748 —
TOtAl TAXES. .. eiieeeiiee ettt ettt e e et e e s e e tae e 9,686,085 — 9,686,085 —
Unrestricted grants and contributions.............ccccoevvieeiieiieniennns 159 — 159 —
Unrestricted investment income 55,534 8,206 63,740 —
Tobacco legal settlement..........ccoivviiiiiiiiece e 73,326 — 73,326 —
OthEI TEVEINUES......oeee ettt e e 587,564 85 587,649 —
Additions t0 ENAOWMENES........ceeeeiiiiiiiiee et — — — 41,923
Transfers—internal activities. .............cooeeviveveiiiiciic, (60,968) 60,968 — —
Total general revenues, additions to
endowments, and transfers..............ccooeviiiiiie e, 10,341,700 69,259 10,410,959 41,923
Change in Net POSItioN......cccevieiieiieiie e 1,267,427 236,627 1,504,054 502,555
Net position (deficit) at beginning of year, restated 16,211,475 (478,482) 15,732,993 9,646,164
Net position (deficit) at end of year........cccoceviiiiiiiiiniiiieeee $ 17,478,902 $ (241,855) $ 17,237,047 $ 10,148,719

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Balance Sheet

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
INVESMENLS......covviriieiiciiiie i
Invested securities lending collateral.............cccooceiiiieninninns
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNTS. ...ttt
Contributions....
Accrued interest
INCOME tAXES....vieviiiiiiieie sttt
Sales and Other taXes.........cooveieriieeiie e
Student accounts
Patient accounts
LOANS AN NOLES.....uviiiiiiiiieiee s
Due from Federal government
aNd Other grantorsS.........c.cvveiieiiieiie e
Due from other funds...
Due from component units.
Interfund receivables...
INVENTOTIES. ...ttt
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...........c.ccocveiiiiieie e
Accounts receivable

Prepaid itemS........ccoviiiiiiie e
Other @SSELS.....ccuiiiiieiiietee e

TOtAl ASSELS..cuiiiiieiiieeiee et

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

Liabilities:
Accounts payable...........ccooiiiiiiiii
Accrued salaries and related expenditures.............cccccceeveennee.
Retainages payable...........cocoiiiiiiiiiie e
Tax refunds payable
Payable—aid to individuals/families
Intergovernmental payables
Due to other funds............
Due t0 COMPONENt UNILS.....c..ouveiiieerieiieienie et
Interfund payables
Deferred revenues
Securities lending collateral
Other liabilities

Total llabilitieS......cooiieiiiiee e

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
COMMILEEd......oiiiiiii
ASSIGNET. ...t
UNASSIGNEU. ......oiiiiiiiiiiiie et

Total fund balances (defiCit).........ccevvrviririiiiiniicnne
Total liabilities and fund balances.........cccccccooviiieiirens

Departmental Local
General Program Government
Fund Services Infrastructure
3,046,960 163,161 $ 528,852
38,177 10,889 —
862 134 4,057
128,292 107,903 13,444
1,070 — —
6,108 290 2,710
420,196 — —
445,093 11,277 —
15 10 —
11,580 3,777 —
38,168 451 472,329
7,026 565,652 —
79,920 12,191 1,092
1,554 1,070 —
882 760 294,861
24,422 2,186 —
— — 783,216
— — 247,989
— — 39,649
7,549 5,069 —
4,257,874 884,820 $ 2,388,199
155,591 249,949 3,001
89,352 25,173 69
1 869 —
707,037 — —
447 8,486 —
67,609 198,993 797
24,877 72,563 656
210,522 22,075 —
22,132 425 —
65,725 73,544 337,020
2,984 463 13,830
67,560 10 —
1,413,837 652,550 355,373
67,717 8,466 740,600
337,687 249,882 1,292,226
650,545 3,955 —
996,539 — —
791,549 (30,033) —
2,844,037 232,270 2,032,826
4,257,874 884,820 $ 2,388,199

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Department of Nonmajor
Transportation Governmental
Special Revenue Funds Totals
$ 256,859 $ 648,832 $ 4,644,664
— 345 49,411
282 514 5,849
6,904 206 256,749
— — 1,070
316 1,031 10,455
— — 420,196
8,603 90,920 555,893
— — 25
— — 15,357
3,878 1,294 516,120
69,909 — 642,587
4,478 7,062 104,743
— 43,122 45,746
— 3,067 299,570
2,487 — 29,095
10,484 — 793,700
— — 247,989
— 37,073 76,722
3,674 24 16,316
771 — 771
$ 368,645 $ 833,490 $ 8,733,028
75,803 $ 56,189 $ 540,533
19,315 175 134,084
73 210 1,153
— 220 707,257
— — 8,933
— 89,252 356,651
12,245 59 110,400
589 9,867 243,053
294,885 10,605 328,047
62,050 — 538,339
1,001 1,777 20,055
— — 67,570
465,961 168,354 3,056,075
9,701 12,401 838,885
10,000 493,194 2,382,989
159,627 2,623 816,750
— 156,918 1,153,457
(276,644) — 484,872
(97,316) 665,136 5,676,953
$ 368,645 $ 833,490 $ 8,733,028

Exhibit B-1



State of South Carolina

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Exhibit B-1a
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total fund balances—governmental fFUNAS........c.cooiiiiiiiie e e raees $ 5,676,953
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the funds.

Non-depreciable capital ASSELS..........ciuiiiiiiiiie e $ 4,277,537
Depreciable capital assets.... 15,517,219
Accumulated depreciation.. .- (4,951,808)
TOtal CAPITAl BSSELS. .. ceiieiieiiiie ittt s e e b e 14,842,948
Bond issue costs are reported as current expenditures in the funds. However, issue costs are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds and are included in governmental
activities in the statement Of N POSITION. .........eiiiiiiiii e 12,862
Certain State revenues will be collected after year-end but are not available soon enough to pay
for the current period's expenditures, and therefore are deferred in the funds...........ccccoecveiiiiiiiieenns 293,432
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to individual
funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement Of N POSILION. .........eiiiiiiiiie e e 493,505
Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the
funds. Those liabilities consist of:
BONAS PAYADIE.........ooiiiiiiiit s (3,393,784)
NOLES PAYADIE. .....eeeiiiiieie e (26,055)
Accrued interest on bonds............cccveiiiiiiiiii (43,912)
(349)
(203,932)
(95,884)
(76,882)
(3,840,798)
_$ 17478902

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Departmental Local
General Program Government
Fund Services Infrastructure
Revenues:
Taxes:
g Lo AVl [VE=T IR Ta oo ] 1 1= TR $ 3,459,968 — $ 20,245
Retall SAIES ANU USE.......uveeiiiiiiieei ettt aaeeees 3,624,715 2,437 —
COrPOrate INCOME.....cciiiiiieitite ettt 386,847 — —
Gas and MOtOr VENICIE.........ccueeiiieiiieiie et — — —
INSUFBNCE. ....c.ciieeietetciie et s e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e eeesassbs b aeaeeees 139,240 — —
HOSPITAL. .t 263,435 — —
ONEE ..t 460,147 127,599 —
Licenses, fees, and PermitS..........ccouiueririiiieieseceeeese e 293,657 28,640 103,160
Interest and other investment iINCOME.............cooeiiiiiiirieieieee e 14,473 — 26,534
0o (] 7= | RPN 63,473 6,760,781 25,746
Local and Private grantS...........ooeeoreeireeiieesieesree s 6,721 45,045 —
DepartMental SEIVICES. .......ccuiiiiiieiiiieie et 656,122 94,474 193
Contributions............ 5,666 13,920 63,701
Fines and penalties........ 111,890 11,419 —
Tobacco legal settlement... — — —
Other....ccccovveiieiiieens . 388,527 186,354 —
TOLAI FEVENUES .. .eveiieieeeee ettt e e e e e e e s e et re e e e e e e e e eenaaaas 9,874,881 7,270,669 239,579
Expenditures:
Current:
GeNeral GOVEIMIMENT........coiuiiiiieiieeeiteeiieeeteeeee et e st e e seeesneeessaeenteeeeeas 490,134 148,654 360
EAUCALION. ...ttt 471,559 270,562 —
Health and enVIFONMENT.........ciiiiiiieeee e ee e 2,360,744 4,266,835 —
SOCIAI SEIVICES. ...ttt e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e stbararaeeaees 290,081 1,785,394 —
Administration of JUSHICE............cooiiiiiiiiii e 678,463 19,592 —
Resources and economic development...........c.evvveirieenieeiee e 97,657 40,133 615
TrANSPOITALION. ....coiiiiiii ittt 2,470 1,800 2,792
CaAPILAl QULIAY ..ot 46,932 51,857 —
Debt service:
Principal retir€MENT........ccviiiiiiiieeie e 149,620 3,077 70,752
Interest and fiscal Charges..........ccouviiiieiieeiie e 49,207 507 98,293
INtErgOVEINIMENTAL ... .eiiiiiiii it 4,186,950 783,496 34,260
TOtal @XPENAITUIES .. .ceiiiiiitieie et 8,823,817 7,371,907 207,072
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures..........cccocveveveerneennnn. 1,051,064 (101,238) 32,507
Other financing sources (uses):
Refunding bonds iSSUET..........ccuieiiiiiiiiiiecie e — — 424,910
Premiums 0N bondS iSSUET..........cccueeiiiiiieeee ettt — — 53,560
Payment to refunded bond eSCrow agent...........ccovvveriieniieiiesiee e — — (476,620)
B e 10 1Y (=T £ TR 167,783 126,692 45,526
TTANSTEIS ULttt et (303,499) (48,476) (9,572)
Total other financing SOUICes (USES)....ccuviiuiriiieiiiieiieeiieesiee e (135,716) 78,216 37,804
Net change in fund balanCes.........ccocvvviiiiieiiiesic e 915,348 (23,022) 70,311
Fund balances (deficit) at beginning of year, as restated. 1,928,689 255,292 1,962,515
Fund balances (deficit) at end of year.........coccooiiiiiiineieieere e $ 2,844,037 232,270 $ 2,032,826

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Exhibit B-2

Department of Nonmajor
Transportation Governmental
Special Revenue Funds Totals

$ — $ — $ 3,480,213
— 641,122 4,268,274

— — 386,847

557,209 — 557,209

— — 139,240

— — 263,435

— 4,246 591,992

— 75,227 500,684

1,824 1,105 43,936

616,345 (2,105) 7,464,240

— — 51,766

19,630 6,476 776,895

— 306,837 390,124

— 7,927 131,236

— 73,326 73,326

10,961 1,732 587,574
1,205,969 1,115,893 19,706,991

— 99,187 738,335

— 251,053 993,174

— 19,211 6,646,790

_ — 2,075,475

— — 698,055

— 388 138,793

724,731 — 731,793
298,030 57,234 454,053

45,537 1,237 270,223

26,911 26,386 201,304

78,226 681,034 5,763,966
1,173,435 1,135,730 18,711,961
32,534 (19,837) 995,030

— — 424,910

— — 53,560
— — (476,620)

703 91,123 431,827
— (122,653) (484,200)
703 (31,530) (50,523)

33,237 (51,367) 944,507
(130,553) 716,503 4,732,446

$ (97,316) $ 665,136 $ 5,676,953
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State of South Carolina

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the

Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Net change in fund balances—total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. In the current period these amounts are:

(= To] 1 2= 1o U i = PR ROTI $ 454,053

Depreciation expense (311,026)
Excess of capital outlay over depreciation EXPENSE.........c.couiuiriiieiiiieeiiee e
Donations of capital assets increase net position in the statement of activities, but do not appear in
the governmental funds because they are not financial resources and losses on disposals of
capital assets are reported as an expense in the statement of activities............cccevvriiriiriincicnce
Bond and note proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds; however,
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. In the current
period, proceeds were received from:
Bonds and notes issued (424,910)
Net bond premiums and discounts. (53,560)
Net bond and note proceeds
Bond issuance costs are expenditures in governmental funds, but are deferred assets in the
statement of net position
Certain capital additions were financed through capital leases. In governmental funds, a capital
lease arrangement is considered a source of financing, but in the statement of net assets, the
lease obligation is reported as a liability
Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. In the current year,
these amounts consist of:
Bond principal retirement 255,669
Bonds repurchased 476,620
NOte PriNCIPAI FELIEMENT......eivviiiiieiiieite ettt ettt b et nbe e 12,229
Capital lease payments 227

Total long-term debt repayment..

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to

individual funds. The net expense of the internal service funds is included in
governmental activities in the statement of activities, net of restatements

Because certain receivables will not be collected soon enough after the State's fiscal year ends,
the related revenues are not considered "available" and are deferred in the governmental funds.

Decrease in deferred revenues

944,507

143,027

(43,933)

(478,470)

3,329

(258)

744,745

8,768

(14,108)
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State of South Carolina

Exhibit B-2a

Certain items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. These
consist of changes in the following assets and liabilities:

Accrued interest payable.............ocoiiiiiiii $ 15,198
Unamortized bond ISSUBNCE COSES.........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiic s (14,470)
Unamortized bond premiums and diSCOUNLS.............cccviiiiiiiiiniic 19,899
Unamortized deferred losses on refunding of debt..............cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiii, (6,402)
Compensated abSENCES PAYADIE..........c.uoiiiiiiiiiiie e 53
Policy ClaIMS PAYADIE..........ccuiiiiiiiiii s (52,659)
Other long-term liabilities... (1,799)
Total additional expenses (40,180)
Change in net position of governmental aCHIVItIES.......c..ooiuiiiiiiii e $ 1,267,427

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Net Position

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INTERNAL
Unemployment Nonmajor SERVICE
Compensation Enterprise Totals FUNDS
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents............cccccorerericienc e $ 263,253 $ 39,873 $ 303,126 $ 614,061
INVESIMENTS....coiviiiiiii e — 108,306 108,306 —
Invested securities lending collateral..............cocceveerienicnnne. 21 4,351 4,372 4,462
Receivables, net:

Accounts... 24,676 2,458 27,134 147,968

PartiCipantS........coviiiiiieiee e — 1,510 1,510 —

ACCIUE INLEIEST... .. 39 213 252 4,902

ASSESSIMENTS. ...ceitiiiiieiiitee et e et e e e 114,428 — 114,428 —
Due from Federal government and other grantors................. 4,176 — 4,176 —
Due from other fUNAS............vveevieiiieiiiiiiieerieeieeeieereereeiaeaaes — — — 8,488
Due from component UNItS..........occeereiriiniieniieniesee e — — — 4,103
INVENEOTIES. ...t — 2,936 2,936 5,763
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents...........ccccoocveviiiienienieneeeee — 86,715 86,715 —
(O3 1T USSR PURRRP — 200 200 —
Prepaid iteMS. ......cc.viiiiiiieeeeee e — 318 318 29,128
Other CUIMENT ASSELS......uuuvieerieerieerieirieerreerieeraeerreere ... — 3,698 3,698 —

Total CUITENt @SSEtS......cceviiiiriiieiiie e 406,593 250,578 657,171 818,875
Long-term assets:

INVESIMENTS. . ..ot — — — 441,605
Receivables, net:

Accounts... — — — 1,169
PartiCipants........cccoiiiiiiiieeee e — 3,716 3,716 —
Interfund receivables............cccccooevvviiiiiii — — — 38,383

Restricted assets:

LOANS IrECEIVADIE. ......uueii e — 3,208 3,208 —
Prepaid iteMS. .......c.viiiiieee e — — — 1,583
Other 10Ng-term asSetS........c.ccoverieriiiiiieiie e — — — 369
Deferred Charges........cocviveiienieiee e — — — 54
Non-depreciable capital aSSets..........cccocverieiieenieniciecee — 50,597 50,597 6,897
Depreciable capital assets, Net..........ccccevveieieiiinieiiiecens — 21,900 21,900 95,973

Total Iong-term assets........ccovvvveriveeiiiieeie e — 79,421 79,421 586,033
TOtAl @SSELS..iiiiiiieiiie et 406,593 329,999 736,592 1,404,908
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State of South Carolina

Exhibit B-3

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INTERNAL
Unemployment Nonmajor SERVICE
Compensation Enterprise Totals FUNDS
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE. ..o $ 360 $ 395 $ 755 $ 4,209
Accrued salaries and related exXpenses...........cccovevverveennens — 609 609 3,379
Tax refunds payable............ccoooveiiiiiiiiii 17,536 — 17,536 —
Unemployment benefits payable............cccocooiriiiiiiiicninns 6,812 — 6,812 —
Intergovernmental payables............cccooeivieniiniiniieeee, 19,011 — 19,011 —
Tuition benefits payable............ccooeiiiiiniiee — 26,246 26,246 —
POIICY ClAIMS. ..ottt — 6,201 6,201 552,670
Due to Other fUNAS.........uuuii e 13,843 88 13,931 617
Unearned rEVENUES.............cooevviieiiiiiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeevaaaeaens — 4,605 4,605 149,448
Securities lending collateral 74 4,536 4,610 14,836
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Accrued interest payable............coccoviiiinin — 51 51 286
Other.....coooviiviiceeeeeee e, — 88,983 88,983 —
Advances from Federal government. . 75,000 — 75,000 —
NOtes payable..........cccoviiiiiiiieee e — — — 275
Revenue bonds payable............ccocoviiiiiiiiiicie — 150 150 1,870
Limited obligation bonds payable..............ccoceviiiiiiieeneennnn. — — — 1,495
Compensated absences payable...........cccccoveriiiniinienienns — 576 576 2,184
Other current abilities .......ccccooveeeieeiieeiieee e, — — — 3,548
Total current liabilities.............cccooveeii, 132,636 132,440 265,076 734,817
Long-term liabilities:
Tuition benefits payable............ccooviiiiiniiiieee — 155,815 155,815 —
POICY CIAIMS. ..ottt — 84,252 84,252 157,476
Interfund payables. ..o — 3,208 3,208 6,698
Unearned rEVENUES............ccooeevieeiieiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e — 1,125 1,125 —
Advances from Federal government.............cccocovevveniennennns 456,557 — 456,557 —
Other liabilities payable from restricted assets. . — 6,000 6,000 —
NOtes payable..........ccoviiiiiiiiiiee e — — — 796
Revenue bonds payable............cooeviiiiiiciiiees — 6,210 6,210 8,847
Limited obligation bonds payable............cccccocveriiiiiiiiicnienns — — — 913
Compensated absences payable............ccocveiiiiicicniee — 204 204 1,856
Total long-term liabilities. ..........ccveviiiiiniiiiccccce 456,557 256,814 713,371 176,586
Total liabilitieS.....ccveeieiie e 589,193 389,254 978,447 911,403
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Net Position

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)

June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital aSSets..........ccccveriveeieenieiicnieciee

Restricted:

Expendable:

EdUCALION......ociiiiiiii i
Loan programs.........
Insurance programs

UNFESHCtEd. ...

Total net position (defiCit)......cccooevriiriiiiiinicic e,

Exhibit B-3

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INTERNAL
Unemployment Nonmajor SERVICE
Compensation Enterprise Totals FUNDS

— $ 72,497 $ 72497 $ 88,674

— 56 56 —

— — — 16,792

— — — 185,906

(182,600) (131,808) (314,408) 202,133

$ (182,600) $ (59,255)  $ (241,855) $ 493,505

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, Exhibit B-4

and Changes in Fund Net Position

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INTERNAL
Unemployment Nonmajor SERVICE
Compensation Enterprise Totals FUNDS
Operating revenues:
AASSESSIMENLS. ...t e ettt e e e et e e et e st e e et e e e e e s et e e steeesneas $ 426,716 $ — $ 426,716 $ —
Charges fOr SEIVICES. .......ciuiiiiiiiiiiie e — 46,803 46,803 2,279,920
[@40] 01151 0107110 o -SSR — 2,839 2,839 —
Interest and other investment iNCOME...........ccccovveveiiiiiencieeees 243 8,024 8,267 —
Licenses, fees, and PermitS..........coccuveiieieiieeeniee i — — — 4
Federal operating grants and CONtracts............ccoceeverveeeieererccnnnnne. 320,482 — 320,482 —
Other Operating rEVENUES. .........couiiiiiie ittt 40,540 110 40,650 132,720
Total Operating rEVENUES.........ceivviiieiierieereeie e 787,981 57,776 845,757 2,412,644
Operating expenses:
General operations and administration.............cccoocveeiieeiiieeiieeennns — 27,307 27,307 383,111
Benefits and ClaimS.........cooovuvrieeiieiiieie et 616,064 (3,727) 612,337 2,020,560
Tuition plan disbursements...........c.cccoiiiiiiii i — 29,464 29,464 —
(1010 £ T SRRSO — — — 23
Depreciation and amortization..............cceeiueeerieeineee e — 989 989 8,807
Other operating EXPENSES. ........ccoveviiririre i — 28 28 3,118
Total Operating EXPENSES. ....ccouii ittt 616,064 54,061 670,125 2,415,619
Operating income (loss). 171,917 3,715 175,632 (2,975)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
[10) (=Y (=S AT oo 1 o1 T — 497 497 11,598
(@001 1] 0101110 ] 3 =R — — — 159
Federal grants and CONractS...........ccoviueieiieiiiiee e — 3 3 4,695
Interest expense — (558) (558) (654)
Net other nonoperating revenues (expenses) 24 61 85 4,553
Losses on sale of capital aSSets.........cccceriveririieeniieieeeee — — — (13)
Total nonoperating revenues (EXPENSES).....ccccuvaiueeaieeeiiieeannns 24 3 27 20,338
Income before transfers.........ccoovveeieiiiiic 171,941 3,718 175,659 17,363
TrANSTEIS IN. ..t e 73,000 104 73,104 4,689
TrANSTEIS OUL.....eiiieiiccieeeieece et (200) (11,936) (12,136) (13,284)
Change in Net POSItION.......c.cciveieereeieeeeeseee e 244,741 (8,114) 236,627 8,768
Net position, beginning, as restated...........ccccoeeeiiiiiiiieiiieenieene (427,341) (51,141) (478,482) 484,737
Net position at end of Year........cccevcveviiiiiiiicic e $ (182,600) $ (59,255) $ (241,855) $ 493,505

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Cash Flows

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers, patients, and third-party payers..................

Assessments received

Grants received

Tuition plan contributions received.
Claims and benefits paid
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Payments to employees
Payments of funds held for others
Internal activity—payments from other funds
Internal activity—payments to other funds
Other operating cash receipts
Other operating cash payments

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities...................

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Principal payments received from other funds
Advances received from other funds.....
Principal payments made to other funds..

Receipt of interest from other funds............ccccocveene

Repayment of Advances from Federal government..

Interest payments on noncapital debt....................
Other noncapital financing cash receipts.....

Other noncapital financing cash payments..
Transfers in.........ccoc.e....

TFANSTEIS OUL....eeiiiiiiiiii et

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INTERNAL

Unemployment Nonmajor SERVICE
Compensation Enterprise Totals FUNDS

$ 40,550 $ 48,211 $ 88,761 $ 2,082,867
431,422 98,196 529,618 —
328,740 — 328,740 —
— 1,753 1,753 —

(627,491) (76,704) (704,195) (1,967,135)

— (21,310) (21,310) (352,591)

— (7,424) (7,424) (50,350)

— — — 1,527

— — — 185,521

— — — (181)

— 463 463 100,348

— (291) (291) (243)

173,221 42,894 216,115 (237)

— — — 2,954

— — — 2,205

— — — (20,282)

— — — 168
(250,606) — (250,606) —

— (532) (532) (2,873)

— 812 812 9,134

— — — 7,135

73,000 104 73,104 4,689

(200) (11,936) (12,136) (13,284)

(177,806) (11,552) (189,358) (10,154)
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Exhibit B-5

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INTERNAL
Unemployment Nonmajor SERVICE
Compensation Enterprise Totals FUNDS
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition oOf capital ASSELS.......ccviviierierierie e $ — $ (4,551) $ (4,551) $ (8,343)
Principal payments on limited obligation bonds...........ccccccvevieiiineens — — — (1,420)
Principal payments on capital debt............ccccoovviiiiiiiiii — — — (3,855)
Interest payments on capital debt...........ccccoocviiiiiiii — — — (832)
Proceeds from sale or disposal of capital assets.............ccocvveriiveennnns — 31 31 —
Net cash used in capital and related
fINANCING ACTIVITIES...ciiiiiiiiiciie e — (4,520) (4,520) (14,450)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments.................cceee..... — 14,712 14,712 78,332
Purchase of INVESIMENTS.........c.coiiiiiiiiieceee e — (105,300) (105,300) (79,314)
Interest and dividends on investments.............cccccevieiiciniiiiciciens 256 10,846 11,102 22,734
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities..............c.c....... 256 (79,742) (79,486) 21,752
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents...........cc.cccoceeviiicicinnns (4,329) (52,920) (57,249) (3,089)
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year, restated...........ccccvviiiniiii i 267,582 179,508 447,090 617,150
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.........cccccveveiieiiiiieneene $ 263,253 $ 126,588 $ 389,841 $ 614,061
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating iNCOME (I0SS)......ciueeuerieeiieie et $ 171,917 $ 3,715 $ 175,632 $ (2,975)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization.............cccveoeereerieeieeneenie e — 989 989 8,807
Provision for bad debts... 6,134 — 6,134 —
Interest payments reclassified as capital
and related financing activities — — — 52
Interest and dividends on investments and interfund loans................. (243) (8,038) (8,281) (689)
Realized losses on sale of aSSets.........cccvvvereeiiiiii i — — — (13)
Other NONOPEerating rEVENUES..........ccoveriririeeieesiee et — 356 356 a4
Other NONOPEerating EXPENSES. ........eiruierieriiiieeriee et — (20) (20) a7

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Cash Flows Exhibit B-5
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INTERNAL
Unemployment Nonmajor SERVICE
Compensation Enterprise Totals FUNDS
Effect of changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, NEL..........ccoovieiieiieiie e e $ (6,797) $ (681) $ (7,478) $ (39,082)
ACCTUEH INTEIEST.....eieiiiie ettt 13 — 13 —
Assessments receivable, Net..........ccccooevvvvvviiiiieiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeen 5,379 — 5,379 —
Due from Federal government and other grantors............ccccoecvveeninen. 8,257 — 8,257 —
Due from other funds...........ccooiiiiiiiiiie e — — — 5,014
INVENTOTIES. ...t e — 50 50 369
OthEr @SSELS....ueiiiiiiiiitie ittt — 96 96 (7,174)
ACCOUNES PAYADIE. .....cuiiiiiiiiicirieec e 283 (624) (341) (1,312)
Accrued salaries and related expenses — 69 69 238
Tax refunds payable................... (2,896) — (2,896) —
Unemployment benefits payable. (11,398) — (11,398) —
Tuition benefits payable. — 23,810 23,810 —
Policy claims............... . — 22,380 22,380 53,374
Due to other funds... . 2,572 (19) 2,553 (1,873)
Unearned revenues..................... . — 877 877 (12,010)
Compensated absences payable... — (24) (24) (240)
Other IaDIlItIES........ceviiiiiee e — (42) (42) (2,750)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities.................... $ 173,221 $ 42,894 $ 216,115 $ (237)
Noncash capital, investing, and financing activities:
Disposal of capital @SSEtS.........ccvvveiierieiiiiieee e $ — $ — $ — $ 3,562
Reduction in advances other than payments...........ccccocveeinveeninnenns 24 — 24 —
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments...........ccccoceveiiieennns — (267) (267) (14,132)
Total noncash capital, investing,
and financing aCtiVities......ccocieieiiiiee e $ 24 $ (267) $ (243) $ (10,570)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents............cccoccovvvveniieeinnnens

Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES. ...ttt
Contributions....
Accrued interest.............

Due from other funds..........ccccoveeiviieiiiie e
Investments, at fair value:
Short term iNVestMeNts..........ccccoevvveeeiiieeiiieeeeieeeens
Debt-domEStiC.........ccovviieeiie e
Debt-international...........ccccceeveeiiieeeeiiee e
EQUIity-dOMESTIC........eeeereeriirieiie e
Equity-international..............cccocoeiiiiiininncieee
AREINALIVES. ....evie it
Financial and other..
Total INVESIMENES........cvvviiieiiiieeiee e
Invested securities lending collateral.................c......
Capital assets, Net .......cccceeveirieiieeie e
Prepaid itemMS.......cccoiiiiiiie e
Other @SSEtS......cciiiiieeiiie it

Total @SSeLS..ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiieeie e

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accounts payable—unsettled investment
purchases.............
Policy claims.......
Due to other funds.
Tax refunds payable............ccccooooviiiiiiiiiiie
Intergovernmental payables.............cccccooininiiinnnnnn.
DEPOSIES. ...
Amounts held in custody for others............ccccccoceene
Deferred retirement benefits.............ccocceoeiiiiiienens
Securities lending collateral...............cccocovininiecnnnnne
Due to partiCipants. .........cccocceeeieeereneseeese e
Other liabilities..........ccooeriiiiiie,

Total liabilitieS.......cccoovirieiiecce
NET POSITION
Held in trust for:
Pension and other post-employment benefits..........
External investment pool participants..........c...c.c.c...
Other PUIPOSES......cciuviiieiiieriee et

Total net POSItioN.......cccoviiviiiicieceeee

Pension and

Exhibit B-6

Other Post- Investment Trust Private-
Employment Local Government Purpose
Benefit Trust Investment Pool Trust Agency
$ 3,074,930 $ 2,207,537 $ 19,863 $ 235,494
— — — 1,194
225,494 — — —
72,329 6,834 1,134 298
712,485 — 846 —
2,798 — — —
— — — 497
1,013,106 6,834 1,980 1,989
54,712 — — 12,014
476,652 — — —
7,305,845 1,171,468 — —
1,952,259 — — —
1,775,267 — — —
1,728,462 — — —
11,845,380 —_ —_ —_
90,427 364,649 1,753,787 —
25,174,292 1,536,117 1,753,787 —
108,152 — 30 25
3,083 — — —
1,266 — — 1
_ — 4,786 —
29,429,541 3,750,488 1,780,446 249,523
9,243 — 757 9,526
1,361,171 — 1,287 —
281 — — —
55,009 — — —
— — — 4
— — — 18,889
— — — 3,759
— — — 217,224
468,781 — — —
181,965 — 103 88
— 32 — 33
149,937 — — —
2,226,387 32 2,147 249,523
27,203,154 — — —
— 3,750,456 — —
— — 1,778,299 —
$ 27,203,154 $ 3,750,456 $ 1,778,299 $ —

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Changes in Exhibit B-7

Fiduciary Net Position
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Pension and

Other Post- Investment Trust
Employment Local Government Private-Purpose
Benefit Trust Investment Pool Trust
Additions:
Licenses, fees, and PermitS.........cccocvereerieeiinenieeeneenee e seeeees $ — $ — $ 34
Contributions:
EMPIOYET....ciiiiiieiiii e 1,524,659 — —
EMPIOYEE. ...t 775,634 — —
Deposits from pool participants...........cccocvveerieeeniieeiiiee e — 6,478,273 —
Tuition plan dePOoSItS........cceeiiiiiiiiiericiie e — — 100,028
Total coNtribBULIONS. ........vviiiiiieiic e 2,300,293 6,478,273 100,028
Investment income:
Interest income and net appreciation in investments... 2,972,458 9,766 180,777
Securities 1ending INCOME.........ccocvuiiiiiiieiiiee e 2,527 1 —
Total iNvestMeNnt INCOME.........uuuuvverrieeriierrierieeriierinerraerreaaa.. 2,974,985 9,767 180,777
Less investment expense:
INVESTMENT EXPENSE.....oviiiiiiiiiieiee e 419,682 — —
Securities [ending EXPeNnSe.........cccevviveeiiiiieniiiee e 2 — —
Net iNVeStMENt INCOME..........cccvveieee e 2,555,301 9,767 180,777
Assets moved between pension trust funds...........ccccceeeeeinnnn. 3,396 — —
Total additioNS....cceveiieiee e 4,858,990 6,488,040 280,839
Deductions:
Regular retirement benefits..........cccocieiiiieiiiee e 2,518,327 — —
Supplemental retirement benefits. . 666 — —
Deferred retirement DENEfitS.............uvveirieiiieiiiiiiiiiinens 245,717 — —
Refunds of retirement contributions to members.............c........ 102,255 — —
Death benefit claims.........oooviiii 21,268 — —
Accidental death benefitS...........ccooeevveieiiiicciiee e, 1,557 —_ —_
Other post-employment benefits.........ccocoeiviiiiiiiiiiiieieee 352,435 — —
Withdrawals, pool partiCipants..........ccccceveeveeneenieeneeseeceeen — 6,206,872 —
Distributions to pool partiCipants...........c.ccceeeveeeniieeinneeesieee e — 8,181 —
DEPreciation. .........coveiiiiiieieeee e 211 — —
AdMINISIrative EXPENSE......cciiiiieiiiie et 22,263 359 10,671
Other EXPENSES. ... uviiiiiieiiit ettt — — 567
Assets moved between pension trust funds.............ccceveereee 3,396 — —
Total dedUCtioNS.....ccveiieiieeieeee e 3,268,095 6,215,412 11,238
Change in Net aSSetS......cocveiiiiiiniieeeeee e 1,590,895 272,628 269,601
Net position, beginning........ccccveeiiiiiiiie e, 25,612,259 3,477,828 1,508,698
Net position at end of Year......ccoccveveeviiiie i $ 27,203,154 $ 3,750,456 $ 1,778,299

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Net Position

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Medical University
Public University of of
Service South South Clemson
Authority Carolina Carolina University
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents... $ 132,429 $ 248,747 $ 386,590 $ 244,754
Investments 235,889 407,642 286,042 158,607
Invested securities lending collateral..............cccocovniiiiiicinnns — 125 672 335
Receivables, net:
Accounts 205,034 23,923 40,986 4,566
Contributions — 15,245 33,349 33,004
Accrued interest 1,731 583 1,460 1,466
Student accounts... — 776 8,985 4,018
Patient accounts.... — 206,413 3,142 —
Loans and notes.... — 561 518 62
Due from Federal government and other grantors... — 24,436 24,265 16,397
Due from primary government — 25,483 2,133 10,949
INVENTOTIES. ..ttt ettt e et e e nae e 674,210 — 2,935 2,136
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents. 341,093 63,098 302,494 212,207
Investments 559,412 73,833 69,394 349,295
Loans receivable.... — 12,598 18,047 8,499
Prepaid items 16,169 14,611 8,324 7,339
Other assets, 669,861 51,481 10,243 315
Deferred charges 797,699 5,778 — 813
Investment in joint venture. 8,124 — — —
Capital assets-nondepreciable.... 1,763,611 165,351 192,598 136,196
Capital assets-depreciable, net... 4,184,307 1,029,175 996,241 643,915
Total @SSetS.....ccoiiiiiiiii s 9,589,569 2,369,859 2,388,418 1,834,873
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accumulated decrease in
fair value of hedging derivatives............cccoceviiiiiiiiiininne, $ 34,891 $ 5,493 $ — $ —
Total deferred OUtflOWS.........ccocvveininiciiiiccc $ 34,891 $ 5,493 $ — $ —
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 221,933 $ 67,954 $ 56,117 $ 24,580
Accrued salaries and related expenses. 7,025 76,604 22,915 16,374
Accrued interest payable.... 108,465 2,001 3,903 1,394
Retainages payable 2,428 270 859 1,110
Prizes payable — — — —
Intergovernmental payables... — — — —
Due to primary government — 1,070 4,237 150
Unearned revenues and deferred credits.. 1,002,313 36,522 46,586 34,668
Deposits — — 2,656 984
Amounts held in custody for others. — 17,852 1,213 3,361
Securities lending collateral............cccceoiiiiiiiiiiiiiee — 425 2,228 1,098
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Other liabilities 682,592 70,319 29,438 16,801
Long-term liabilities:
Due Within 0ne year.........ccccueciiiiiiiiiieicec e 336,620 48,249 42,922 29,260
Due in more than one year.. 5,285,078 565,439 573,839 161,194
Total liabilities 7,646,454 886,705 786,913 290,974
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Accumulated increase in
fair value of hedging derivatives.. $ 3,423 $ — $ — $ —
Total deferred outflows $ 3,423 $ — $ — $ —
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital @SSets.........cccooveviiviiniiiinicneeneees 894,920 582,687 676,831 615,179
Restricted:
Expendable:
Education —_ 154,944 149,444 359,564
Transportation — —_ —_ —_
Capital projects.... — 50,030 70,192 115,452
Debt service 140,038 47,618 24,474 9,044
Loan programs.. — — — —
Nonexpendable:
EUCALION. ...ttt e — 203,289 257,222 300,354
Unrestricted 939,625 450,079 423,342 144,306
Total net position.. $ 1,974,583 $ 1,488,647 $ 1,601,505 $ 1,543,899

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

State Nonmajor
Ports Housing Component
Authority Authority Units Total
$ 187,090 $ 38,804 $ 600,391 $ 1,838,805
15,642 — 172,236 1,276,058
1,200 (58) 418 2,692
26,566 772 112,507 414,354
— — 20,223 101,821
—_ 236 1,754 7,230
— — 38,843 52,622
— — — 209,555
—_ 25,767 91,846 118,754
— 821 46,959 112,878
190,513 1,563 12,412 243,053
6,504 — 16,991 702,776
— 130,927 233,614 1,283,433
— 214,094 373,239 1,639,267
— 618,499 13,416 671,059
— 5,375 3,323 8,698
4,050 — 15,922 66,415
153 504 149,171 881,728
1,372 6,633 6,052 818,347
_ — — 8,124
407,024 — 230,407 2,895,187
286,547 434 1,711,064 8,851,683
1,126,661 1,044,371 3,850,788 22,204,539
$ — $ — $ — $ 40,384
$ — $ — $ — $ 40,384
$ 15,493 $ — $ 63,714 $ 449,791
2,620 781 37,279 163,598
6,738 — 7,491 129,992
4,663 — 1,263 10,593
— — 26,892 26,892
16 — 420 436
— — 44,392 49,849
—_ —_ 164,053 1,284,142
— 5,869 10,471 19,980
— — 4,713 27,139
4,045 (191) 1,425 9,030
— 20,145 760 20,905
16,206 1,590 7,288 824,234
7,952 12,807 81,365 559,175
177,384 639,103 1,114,988 8,517,025
235,117 680,104 1,566,514 12,092,781
$ — $ — $ — $ 3,423
$ — $ — $ — $ 3,423
504,276 434 1,314,823 4,589,150
— — 162,798 826,750
— — 472 472
— — 218,800 454,474
9,009 56,813 40,167 327,163
— 266,470 55,683 322,153
— — 2,675 2,675
— — 184,926 945,791
378,259 40,550 303,930 2,680,091
$ 891,544 $ 364,267 $ 2,284,274 $ 10,148,719
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Activities

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Program Revenues

Charges for

Operating
Grants and

Capital
Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions

Public Service Authority.........ccooviveennens $ 1,804,871 1,887,797 1,926 —
Medical University of South Carolina......... 1,850,245 1,724,344 173,721 38,641
University of South Carolina...................... 1,281,265 1,008,288 314,056 16,520
Clemson UniVersity........cccevveeeneeneennns 733,094 543,456 249,484 33,128
State Ports AUthOIitY.........cccveiienienieeneee 135,902 135,838 3,893 2,984
Housing AUthOFitY.........cccverviriiiiiciiciee 242,279 102,671 147,653 —
Nonmajor component Units............c.cceeeene 2,958,825 2,310,475 694,676 77,562

TOLaAIS et $ 9,006,481 7,712,869 1,585,409 168,835

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Net
Position Net
Net (Deficit) Position
Revenue Additions to Beginning (Deficit)
(Expenses) Endowments (Restated) Ending
$ 84,852 — 1,889,731 $ 1,974,583
86,461 10,585 1,391,601 1,488,647
57,599 11,798 1,532,108 1,601,505
92,974 11,122 1,439,803 1,543,899
6,813 — 884,731 891,544
8,045 — 356,222 364,267
123,888 8,418 2,151,968 2,284,274
$ 460,632 41,923 9,646,164 $ 10,148,719

Exhibit C-2
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State of South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Scope of Reporting Entity

The South Carolina General Assembly (an elected legislative body) and several elected executives govern the State of
South Carolina. The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the State of South Carolina’s primary
government and its component units.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the State is accountable for purposes of financial reporting.
Blended component units, although legally separate from the State, are part of the State’s operations in substance.
Accordingly, the State includes blended component units within applicable funds in its fund financial statements and within
applicable activities in its government-wide financial statements. In contrast, the State excludes its discretely presented
component units from the fund financial statements included within its basic financial statements and it reports the discretely
presented component units separately in its government-wide financial statements.

As explained more fully below, the State’s primary government and its component units include various State funds,
agencies, departments, institutions, authorities, and other organizations.

Primary Government

The State’s primary government includes all constitutional offices, departments, agencies, commissions, and authorities
unless otherwise noted below.

The State’s five defined benefit retirement systems and two post-employment benefit trust funds are part of the State’s
primary government. The Board of Directors of the South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA), which
consists of eleven members appointed by the Governor and General Assembly leadership, serves as trustee of the systems
and the trust funds. The State Budget and Control Board, which consists of five elected officials, also reviews certain
decisions made by the PEBA Board of Directors regarding the funding of the retirement systems and serves as a co-trustee of
the retirement systems in conducting that review. The State Treasurer is custodian of the funds.

Blended Component Units

Unless otherwise indicated below, the following blended component units have fiscal years ended June 30, and the
accompanying financial statements include component unit financial information for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

Tobacco Settlement Revenue Management Authority

The Tobacco Settlement Revenue Management Authority, a blended component unit accounted for as a governmental
fund, was created in accordance with an act of the General Assembly that resulted from South Carolina’s participation in a
settlement (the Master Settlement Agreement or MSA) that arose out of litigation that a group of state governments brought
against the tobacco industry. The legally separate Authority’s primary purposes are (a) to receive all receipts due to South
Carolina under the MSA after June 30, 2001, and (b) to issue the Authority’s revenue bonds payable solely from, and secured
solely by, those receipts. The Authority’s governing board is composed of the Governor or her designee, the State Treasurer,
the Comptroller General, the Chairman of the Senate Finance Committee, and the Chairman of the House Ways and Means
Committee. The State receives the funding from the bond issuances, except in the event that the Authority issues bonds
expressly to refund its outstanding bonds.

Public Railways Division
The Public Railways Division of the Department of Commerce, a blended component unit accounted for as an enterprise
fund, has a fiscal year ended December 31, 2012.

Obtaining More Information about Blended Component Units

One may obtain complete financial statements for the above blended component units from the following administrative
offices:

South Carolina Tobacco Settlement Public Railways Division

Revenue Management Authority South Carolina Department of Commerce
122 Wade Hampton Office Building 1201 Main Street, Suite 1600
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 Columbia, SC 29201-3200

WWwWw.lreasurer.sc.gov
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Discretely Presented Component Units

Unless otherwise indicated below, the following discretely presented component units have fiscal years ended June 30,
and the accompanying financial statements include component unit financial information for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2013. In determining which discretely presented component units are major, the State considered the significance of each
component unit’s relationship to the primary government. The following have been identified as the State’s major discretely
presented component units:

South Carolina Public Service Authority

The State General Assembly created the South Carolina Public Service Authority (Santee Cooper), a public utility
company. Its primary purpose is to provide electric power and wholesale water to the people of South Carolina. The
Governor appoints its Board of Directors and has the ability to remove the appointed members at will. By law, the Authority
must annually transfer to the State’s General Fund any net earnings not necessary for prudent business operations. The
financial information presented is for the Authority’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2012. A financial benefit/burden
relationship exists between the State and the Public Service Authority.

Medical University of South Carolina

The Medical University of South Carolina (MUSC) is a legally separate State-supported institution of higher education.
MUSC is granted an annual appropriation for operating purposes as authorized by the General Assembly. The management
and control of the university is vested in a board of trustees, composed as follows: the Governor or designee, ex officio,
fourteen members elected by the General Assembly in joint assembly, and one member appointed by the Governor. A
financial benefit/burden relationship exists between the State and MUSC.

University of South Carolina

The University of South Carolina (USC) is a legally separate State-supported institution of higher education. USC is
granted an annual appropriation for operating purposes as authorized by the General Assembly. The board of trustees is
composed of the Governor (or designee), the State Superintendent of Education, and the President of the Greater University
of South Carolina Alumni Association, which three are members ex officio of the board, and seventeen other members
including one member from each of the sixteen judicial circuits elected by the general vote of the General Assembly, and one
at-large member appointed by the Governor. A financial benefit/burden relationship exists between the State and USC.

Clemson University

Clemson University is a legally separate State-supported, institution of higher education. The University is granted an
annual appropriation for operating purposes as authorized by the General Assembly. The University is governed by a board
of thirteen members, including six elected by the General Assembly and seven self-perpetuating life members. A
benefit/burden relationship exists between the State and Clemson University.

South Carolina State Ports Authority

The State General Assembly created the South Carolina State Ports Authority to develop and improve the State’s harbors
and seaports. The State Ports Authority owns and operates eight ocean terminals that handle import and export cargo. The
Governor appoints the members of the Authority’s governing board, except for the Secretary of Transportation and the
Secretary of Commerce. Removal of the Governor’s appointed members requires a breach of duty or entering into a conflict
of interest transaction. The State’s primary government has provided financial support to the State Ports Authority in the
past, and State law grants the State access to the State Ports Authority’s surplus net revenues. A financial benefit/burden
relationship exists between the State and the State Ports Authority.

South Carolina State Housing Finance and Development Authority

The South Carolina State Housing Finance and Development Authority is a legally separate entity that facilitates
medium-income and low-income housing opportunities by providing reasonable financing to the State’s citizens. To provide
such financing, the Authority issues bonds and notes and administers federal grants and contracts. Mortgage interest is a
primary resource for the Authority. The Governor appoints, with the advice and consent of the Senate, seven persons to be
commissioners of the South Carolina State Housing Finance and Development Authority. The Governor appoints the
chairman from among the seven commissioners. The State has the ability to impose its will on the Housing Finance and
Development Authority.

Other Discretely Presented Component Units (Nonmajor)

The State’s government-wide financial statements also include the following nonmajor discretely presented component
units in the aggregate:

The Children’s Trust Fund of South Carolina, Inc. is a non-profit, tax-exempt public charity with a purpose to stimulate
innovative prevention and treatment programming to meet critical needs of South Carolina’s children by awarding grants to
private non-profit organizations. The Governor appoints the Board of Directors’ seventeen members and has the ability to
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remove the appointed members at will. The financial information presented is for the Fund’s fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012.

Connector 2000 Association, Inc. is a legally separate entity created to contract with the State Department of
Transportation (DOT) in financing, acquiring, constructing, and operating turnpikes and other transportation projects,
primarily the project known as the Southern Connector in Greenville County. The leasing and operational agreements with
the DOT provide the DOT with certain managerial oversight authority. The financial information presented in the
accompanying financial statements is for the Association’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2012. DOT is responsible for
confirming the effectiveness and reasonableness of proposed toll rate changes in order for new toll rates to be established.
Toll revenues, to the extent available, in accordance with the amended license agreement, are used to offset the highway
maintenance commitments of DOT related to the Southern Connector. The Association is fiscally dependent on DOT for the
maintenance of the Southern Connector highway. A benefit/burden relationship exists between the State and the Association.

The South Carolina Education Assistance Authority is a legally separate entity that issues bonds to make loans to
individuals to enable students to attend higher education institutions. Resources include interest charges, subsidies from the
United States Department of Education, loan repayments, and investment earnings. Management oversight for the Authority
is provided by the State Budget and Control Board.

The South Carolina First Steps to School Readiness is a legally separate non-profit, tax-exempt public charity created
specifically to carry out the objectives of The South Carolina First Steps to School Readiness Act and to lessen the burdens
on government by overseeing the initiative for improving early childhood development of the Act. The corporation’s
governing board is composed of two classes of members, voting and nonvoting. The Board’s voting members include the
Governor, State Superintendent of Education, ten Governor appointees, four members appointed by the President Pro
Tempore of the Senate, four members appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives, the Chairman of the Senate
Education Committee, and the Chairman of the House Education and Public Works Committee. The State has the ability to
impose its will on First Steps to School Readiness.

South Carolina Jobs-Economic Development Authority is a legally separate entity that promotes and develops business
and economic welfare in the state. The Authority is governed by a Board of Directors (board) which consists of ten
members all appointed by the Governor. The State has the ability to impose its will on the Jobs-Economic Development
Authority.

The South Carolina Lottery Commission was created through an act of the General Assembly to generate entertainment
for citizens and visitors of the state while providing revenue for educational purposes. The Commission is legally separate
and is governed by a nine-member board with three members appointed by the Governor, three appointed by the President
Pro Tempore of the Senate, and three appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives. State law requires, as nearly
practical, that at least 45% of sales must be returned to the public in the form of prizes to achieve its entertainment value and
that the Commission must transfer its net proceeds to the State to support improvements and enhancements for educational
purposes and programs. A benefit/burden relationship exists between the State and the Lottery.

The South Carolina Medical Malpractice Liability Joint Underwriting Association was established to provide medical
malpractice insurance on a self-supporting basis. The Association is legally separate and is governed by a board of thirteen
directors, all of whom are appointed by the Governor. The Governor has the ability to remove the appointed members at
will. The financial information presented is for the Association’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2012.

Patriots Point Development Authority is a legally separate entity, established to develop and maintain a naval and
maritime museum on Charleston Harbor, and to provide a place of education and recreation. The Patriots Point Development
Authority Board also oversees the stewardship of over 350 acres of property on Charleston Harbor. Members of the authority
are appointed by the Governor as follows: one upon the joint recommendation of the Chairman of the House Ways and
Means Committee and the Speaker of the House, one upon the joint recommendation of the Chairman of the Senate Finance
Committee and the President Pro Tempore of the Senate, and three appointed by the Governor. The Governor appoints the
chairman. In addition, there are three additional members of the board appointed by the Governor, one appointed upon
recommendation of the President Pro Tempore of the Senate, one appointed upon recommendation of the Speaker of the
House of Representatives, and one appointed upon recommendation of the State Adjutant General. A financial
benefit/burden relationship exists between the State and the Authority.

The following universities are nonmajor component units: The Citadel, Coastal Carolina University, College of
Charleston, Francis Marion University, Lander University, South Carolina State University, and Winthrop University. The
universities are legally separate entities, with boards appointed by the State. A benefit/burden relationship exists between the
State and each individual university because the State provides significant funding to these institutions.

The following technical colleges are nonmajor component units: Aiken Technical College, Central Carolina Technical
College, Denmark Technical College, Florence-Darlington Technical College, Greenville Technical College, Horry-
Georgetown Technical College, Technical College of the Lowcountry, Midlands Technical College, Northeastern Technical
College, Orangeburg-Calhoun Technical College, Piedmont Technical College, Spartanburg Community College, Tri-county
Technical College, Trident Technical College, Williamsburg Technical College, and York Technical College. The colleges
are legally separate entities, with boards appointed by the State. A benefit/burden relationship exists between the State and
each individual college because the State provides significant funding to these institutions.
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Obtaining More Information about Discretely Presented Component Units
One may obtain stand-alone financial statements for discretely presented component units from the following administrative offices:

South Carolina Public Service Authority Children’s Trust Fund of South Carolina
(Santee Cooper) 1205 Pendleton Street, Suite 506
One Riverwood Drive Columbia, South Carolina 29201
Post Office Box 2946101 www.scchildren.org
Moncks Corner, South Carolina 29461
WWww.santeecooper.com Connector 2000 Association, Inc.
Post Office Box 408
South Carolina State Ports Authority Piedmont, South Carolina 29673
Post Office Box 22287 www.southernconnector.com
Charleston, South Carolina 29413
www.port-of-charleston.com South Carolina Education Assistance Authority
Post Office Box 102425
South Carolina State Housing Finance and Development Columbia, SC 29224
Authority https://www.scstudentloan.org/
300-C Outlet Pointe Blvd.
Columbia, South Carolina 29210 South Carolina First Steps to School Readiness
http://www.schousing.com/ 1300 Sumter Street, Suite 100
Columbia, SC 29201
Universities: http://www.scfirststeps.org/
Medical University of South Carolina
University of South Carolina South Carolina Jobs-Economic Development Authority
Clemson University 1201 Main Street, Suite 1600
The Citadel Columbia, SC 29201
Coastal Carolina University http://www.scjeda.com/
College of Charleston
Francis Marion University South Carolina Lottery Commission
Lander University Post Office Box 11949
South Carolina State University Columbia, South Carolina 29211
Winthrop University www.sceducationlottery.com

http://www.che.sc.gov/InfoCntr/Coll_Univ.htm

South Carolina Medical Malpractice

Technical Colleges: Liability Joint Underwriting Association
Aiken Technical College c/o Patient’'s Compensation Fund
Central Carolina Technical College 121 Executive Center Drive
Denmark Technical College Suite 110

Florence-Darlington Technical College Columbia, South Carolina 29210
Greenville Technical College WWW.Scjua.com

Horry-Georgetown Technical College

Technical College of the Lowcountry Patriots Point Development Authority
Midlands Technical College 40 Patriots Point Road

Northeastern Technical College Mount Pleasant, SC 29464
Orangeburg-Calhoun Technical College http://www.patriotspoint.org/

Piedmont Technical College

Spartanburg Community College

Tri-county Technical College

Trident Technical College

Williamsburg Technical College

York Technical College
http://www.che.sc.gov/InfoCntr/Coll_Univ.htm

Related Organizations

A related organization is one for which the primary government is accountable but not financially accountable. The
South Carolina Reinsurance Facility, the Associated Auto Insurers Plan, regional housing authorities, and the Rural
Crossroads Institute are related organizations because the State is not financially accountable for them despite the fact that the
Governor appoints a voting majority of their governing boards. County boards of disabilities and special needs and
redevelopment authorities are related organizations if the Governor appoints a voting majority of the members.

Jointly Governed Organizations

The Governor, in conjunction with officials of certain local governments, appoints the board members of three military-
defense facility redevelopment authorities. The three authorities include the Charleston Naval Complex Redevelopment
Authority, the Myrtle Beach Air Force Base Redevelopment Authority and the Savannah River Site Redevelopment
Authority. The State does not have an ongoing financial interest in these authorities.

The State of South Carolina is a member state within the Atlantic Low-Level Radioactive Waste Compact, a voluntary
association of states that, by federal law, is legally separate from each of the member states. South Carolina does not have an
ongoing financial interest in the Compact.
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b. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and the statement of activities report information about all activities of the primary
government and its component units, except for fiduciary activities. These statements distinguish between the State’s
governmental and business-type activities. Taxes, federal revenues, and other nonexchange transactions primarily finance the
governmental activities whereas fees charged to external parties finance, in whole or in part, the business-type activities. All
of the State’s governmental and internal service funds are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
governmental activities and all of its enterprise funds are reported as business-type activities. (See the Fund Financial
Statements subsection for more information about fund types.)

Statement of Activities and Eliminations

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different
business-type activities of the State and for each function of the State’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those
that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The
State does not eliminate direct expenses and does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities. In
the statement of activities, reimbursements under indirect cost plans for federal reimbursement purposes are reported as
program revenues of the function that includes the reimbursed expenses.

Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. For example, the State eliminates
payments the Department of Health and Human Services makes to the Department of Mental Health for providing Medicaid
services because it reports both departments in its health and environment function. An exception to this general rule is that
interfund services provided or used between functions have not been eliminated in the statement of activities because to do so
would distort the net cost for functional activities as reported in the total column of that statement. The State treats these
internal payments as program revenues and treats interfund reimbursements in the statement of activities in the same manner
as described below for fund financial statements. For example, when the Department of Health and Human Services
purchases computer services from one of the State’s higher education institutions, the health and environment governmental
function reports an expense, and the higher education business-type activity reports program revenue (charges for services).

Program revenues include: (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods, services, or privileges offered by
the programs; (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
program; and (c) investment earnings that are legally restricted for a specific program. The State classifies as general
revenues all revenues that are not program revenues, including all taxes.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the State’s funds, including its fiduciary funds and blended
component units. The State presents separate statements for each fund category—governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, with each displayed in a separate
column. The State aggregates and reports as nonmajor funds all remaining governmental and enterprise funds.

The State eliminates material intrafund activity. It also treats interfund reimbursements (repayments from the funds
responsible for particular expenditures or expenses to the funds that initially paid for them) as reductions of
expenditure/expense in the initial fund. For example, the Department of Motor Vehicles (reported within the general
government function) used office supplies and postage provided by the Department of Public Safety (reported within the
administration of justice function). The Department of Public Safety initially recorded expenditures for the office supplies
and postage in the General Fund. The Department of Motor Vehicles later reimbursed the Department of Public Safety with
monies from a Special Revenue Fund. That is, the Department of Motor Vehicles recorded Special Revenue Fund
expenditures while the Department of Public Safety reduced its General Fund expenditures by the same amount.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds focus primarily on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial resources. The governmental
fund category includes the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, Capital Projects Fund, and Permanent
Funds. The State reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the State’s general operating fund. It accounts for resources that fund the services South Carolina’s
State government traditionally has provided to its citizens, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Departmental Program Services Fund accounts for restricted resources that State agencies use for continued
programmatic accomplishments. These resources include significant amounts of federal grant receipts.

The Local Governmental Infrastructure Fund accounts for grants, loans, and other financial assistance to local
governments for infrastructure purposes. Certain motor fuel taxes, federal funds, and transfers from other funds are the
fund’s primary resources. This fund includes operations of the South Carolina Transportation Infrastructure Bank.

The Department of Transportation Special Revenue Fund accounts for the various gasoline taxes, fees, fines, and federal
grant resources that the Department of Transportation uses in its general operations. Those operations include highway
maintenance and repair as well as most of the Department’s administrative activities.

The State aggregates other nonmajor governmental funds in a single column in its fund financial statements.
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Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds (which are reported as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements) report
activities that charge fees to external users for goods or services. The State reports the following major enterprise fund:

The Unemployment Compensation Fund accounts for the State’s unemployment compensation benefits. Revenues
consist of federal grants and assessments on employers to pay benefits to qualified unemployed persons.

The State aggregates other nonmajor enterprise funds in a single column in its fund financial statements.

Other Fund Types

The State reports the following fund types in addition to governmental and enterprise funds:

Internal service funds account for various goods and services provided to other State departments or agencies (primarily
to governmental funds), or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. Services provided by these funds include
several risk management activities for which the State is the primary participant, including underwriting related to the
following risks: public buildings and their contents, torts, medical malpractice, automobile use by public employees in the
performance of their official duties, employee health and disability, and workers’ compensation benefits. Other services
include those relating to telecommunications, computer operations, office rental, janitorial, building maintenance, lease and
repair of fleet vehicles, procurement, employee training, and management of public employee retirement systems. The
internal service funds also sell goods produced with prison inmate labor. In addition, the internal service funds purchase
selected supplies and equipment in bulk and sell these items to other State funds (primarily governmental funds) and to local
governmental units. The State’s internal service funds are considered to be governmental activities because they primarily
serve governmental funds.

Pension and post-employment benefit trust funds account for the pension benefits of the South Carolina Retirement
System, the Police Officers’ Retirement System, the General Assembly Retirement System, the Judges’ and Solicitors’
Retirement System, and the National Guard Retirement System, and the post-employment health, dental, and long-term
disability insurance benefits provided by the State to its retirees.

The State’s investment trust fund acts as a local government investment pool that the State Treasurer operates.

Private-purpose trust funds include a tuition savings plan benefiting college students and miscellaneous other trust
agreements holding assets that benefit non-State parties.

Agency funds account for assets that the State holds as an agent. These assets include amounts held for prisoners,
patients of State institutions, and other external parties.

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses in Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Enterprise and internal service funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating revenues and
expenses. Operating revenues and expenses are items resulting from the provision of services and goods in connection with
the fund’s principal ongoing operations. The State classifies revenues and expenses as operating if the substance of the
transaction is an exchange transaction. Accordingly, grants and grant-like transactions are reportable as operating revenues
only if they are essentially contracts for services whereby they finance programs that the proprietary fund would not
otherwise undertake (i.e., the activity of the grant is inherently part of the operations of the grantor). Conversely, the State
classifies nonexchange transactions as nonoperating. This includes all grant revenues except those reportable as operating
revenue as described above and those restricted by the grantor for use exclusively for capital purposes. The State reports as
operating expenses those paid from operating revenues except financing related expenses such as interest expense, which is
reported as nonoperating.

For the Unemployment Compensation Fund, principal operating revenues include amounts received from covered
employers and from federal agencies. The amounts received from federal agencies are classified as operating revenues
because they are provided to the State primarily to provide unemployment benefits, although amounts not needed for that
purpose may be used for other purposes. This fund’s operating expenses consist primarily of unemployment compensation
benefits paid.

Component Unit Financial Statements

The State presents a statement of net position and a statement of activities for each of its major discretely presented
component units and for the aggregate of its nonmajor discretely presented component units.
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c. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

A particular measurement focus determines what resources are measured. The State reports its government-wide,
proprietary, and fiduciary fund (other than agency fund) financial statements using the economic resources measurement
focus. Agency funds report only assets and liabilities; and therefore cannot be said to have a measurement focus. Private —
sector business enterprises also use the economic resources measurement focus. The State reports its governmental funds
using the current financial resources measurement focus.

The basis of accounting determines when the State recognizes revenues and expenditures/expenses as well as the related
assets and liabilities, regardless of measurement focus. Generally accepted accounting principles for governments require the
use of the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting as described below.

Accrual Basis

The State uses the accrual basis of accounting in reporting its government-wide financial statements, as well as its
proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements and its major component unit financial statements. Under the accrual
basis, the State generally records revenues when earned and reasonably measurable and records expenses when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Revenues collected in advance are deferred until the period in which
they are earned.

Significant nonexchange transactions, in which the State gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving)
equal value in exchange, include taxes, grants, and donations. On the accrual basis, the State recognizes taxes (income, sales,
and similar) in the period when the underlying income or sales transactions occur, net of estimated overpayments or refunds.
Grants, donations, and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as the State meets all eligibility requirements. Pledges
are recognized as receivables and revenues, net of estimated uncollectible amounts, if all eligibility requirements are met, the
promise is verifiable, and the resources are measurable and probable of collection.

Modified Accrual Basis

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
State considers revenues to be available if they are collected within one month of the end of the current fiscal period with the
following exceptions: tax and grant revenues are considered available if collected within one year; interest on investments is
recorded as earned because it is deemed available when earned. Receivables not expected to be collected within the
established availability periods are offset by deferred revenues.

Recognition of Specific Grant and Shared Revenue Transactions

The State reports the receipt of food commodities as revenue and the distribution of commodities as expenditure or
expense. The fair value of the donated commodities is recognized as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met.

The State recognizes the face value of food stamp benefits distributed as revenue and expenditure or expense under both
the accrual and modified accrual bases of accounting.

The State shares certain of its revenues with municipalities, counties, and districts within its borders, recognizing
expenditure or expense when the recipient government has met all eligibility requirements.

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The amounts shown in the accompanying financial statements as cash and cash equivalents represent cash on hand, cash
on deposit in banks and savings associations, and cash invested in various instruments as a part of the State’s cash
management pool, an internal investment pool. Because the cash management pool operates as a demand deposit account,
amounts invested in the pool are classified as cash and cash equivalents. The State Treasurer administers the cash
management pool. The pool includes some long-term investments such as obligations of the United States, government
sponsored entities, and domestic corporations, certificates of deposit, and collateralized repurchase agreements. Restricted
cash and cash equivalents represents cash on deposit with external parties held for compliance with laws, regulations, and
contractual obligations.

Most entities in the primary government and the discretely presented governmental component units participate in the
cash management pool. Significant exceptions include: retirement plans, the Local Government Investment Pool (an
external investment pool), and the Tobacco Settlement Revenue Management Authority (a blended component unit and a
nonmajor governmental fund). Of the discretely presented component units, the State Ports Authority, the Housing
Authority, and the South Carolina First Steps to School Readiness Board of Trustees participate in the pool. For activities
excluded from the pool, cash equivalents include investments in short-term, highly liquid securities having a maturity at the
time of purchase of three months or less.
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e. Cash Management Pool-Allocation of Interest

The State’s cash management pool consists of a general deposit account and several special deposit accounts. The State
records each fund’s equity interest in the general deposit account. All earnings on that account are recorded in the General
Fund. In contrast, each special deposit account retains its own earnings.

f. Investments

The State Treasurer is authorized by statute to invest all State funds. The State Treasurer’s investment objectives are
preservation of capital, maintenance of adequate liquidity, and obtaining the best yield possible within prescribed parameters.
To meet those objectives, the State Treasurer uses various resources including an investment advisory service, electronic
financial quotation and information services, various economic reports, and daily communication with brokers and financial
institution investment officers.

To insure safety of principal, the State Treasurer’s policy is to limit liquid investments (i.e., those with maturities not
exceeding one year) to cash, repurchase agreements (when collateralized by United States Treasury or federal agency
obligations with a market value in excess of 100.0% of funds advanced), United States Treasury bills, federal agency
discount notes, and commercial paper. The State Treasurer further preserves principal by investing in only the highest
investment grade securities (i.e., those rated at least A by two leading national rating services). In order to diversify
investment holdings, asset allocation policies are utilized for investments having more than one year to maturity. Overall
credit exposure is managed by asset allocation policies and by additional constraints controlling risk exposure to individual
corporate issuers.

Certain agencies and component units have specific authority to manage deposits and investments under their control.
The investment policies of these entities may differ from those of the State Treasurer.

State law has established a six-member Investment Commission with fiduciary responsibility for investment of all of the
State Retirement Systems’ investments. The chief investment officer may invest no more than 70.0% of the Systems’
investment portfolio in equity securities.

Substantially all of the State’s investments are presented at fair value; securities are valued at the last reported sales price
as provided by an independent pricing service.

The State sponsors the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), an external investment pool reported as an
investment trust fund. The LGIP’s complete financial statements may be obtained by writing to the following address:

Office of State Treasurer

Local Government Investment Pool
Post Office Box 11778

Columbia, South Carolina 29211

g. Receivables and Payables

The State records amounts receivable from parties outside the primary government net of allowances for uncollectible
amounts and contractual adjustments. It estimates uncollectible amounts based on past collection experience. The State
discloses the gross amounts of these receivables and the amounts of related allowances and adjustments, as well as any
significant receivable balances not expected to be collected within one year, in Note 5. Further, the State disaggregates its
receivable balances in Note 5 if any significant components thereof have been obscured in the financial statements by
aggregation or if different components of receivables have significantly different liquidity characteristics.

The State presents balances outstanding at the end of the fiscal year that relate to lending/borrowing arrangements
between funds as interfund receivables and payables and reports all other outstanding balances between funds as due to/from
other funds. The government-wide statement of net position displays internal balances that involve fiduciary funds as
accounts receivable and accounts payable. The State reports as internal balances any residual balances outstanding between
the governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.

h. Inventories

The State values its inventories at the lower of cost or market, predominantly using the first-in, first-out methodology for
its proprietary funds and its business-type activities and predominantly using the average cost methodology for its other funds
and activities and its discretely presented component units. The State records expenditures in governmental funds when it
consumes inventory items rather than when it purchases them.

i. Prepaid Iltems

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods. The State records these payments as
prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The state’s policy is to reflect consumption of the
future benefit under the consumption method.
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j. Capital Assets

The State reports its capital assets in the following categories in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
in the government-wide financial statements: land and land improvements, infrastructure (i.e., highways and bridges),
buildings and improvements, construction in progress, vehicles, machinery and equipment, works of art and historical
treasures, and intangible assets.

Capital assets are valued at historical cost or at estimated historical cost if actual historical cost data is not available.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value on the donation date. Infrastructure assets acquired prior to fiscal
years ended after June 30, 1980, are reported at cost beginning in the year 1917. The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not significantly add to the value of an asset or materially extend an asset’s useful life are not capitalized.
Cumulative costs incurred on major capital assets under construction but not yet placed in service are capitalized and reported
as construction in progress. Net interest incurred by a proprietary fund during the construction phase of a major capital asset
is included as part of the capitalized value of such asset.

An individual asset is capitalized and reported if it has an estimated useful life of at least two years and a historical cost
as follows: more than $5 thousand for vehicles, machinery and equipment, and works of art and historical treasures; more
than $100 thousand for buildings and improvements, depreciable land improvements, and intangible assets; and more than
$500 thousand for roads and bridges. All land and non-depreciable land improvements are capitalized and reported,
regardless of cost.

Once the State or one of its discretely presented component units places a depreciable capital asset in service,
depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Category Years
Land Improvements........c.cccceeeeereennnen 3-60
Infrastructure--highways..................... 75
Infrastructure--bridges.......cooevereeenene 50
Buildings and Improvements.............. 5-55
VehiCles.....ccvuieeiernineeericeerenceenns 3-20
Machinery and equipment................... 2-25
Works of art; historical treasures....... 10-25
Intangible assets.......ccccvvecuerrecucnnnnee 3-38

The State does not depreciate land, non-depreciable land improvements, and construction in progress. The State does not
depreciate capitalized individual works of art and historical treasures determined to have inexhaustible useful lives and does
not capitalize collections of works of art and historical treasures that are held for public use, are protected and preserved, and
are subject to a policy that requires the proceeds from sales of collection items to be used to acquire other items for
collections. These non-capitalized collections include historical relics, antiques, fossils, and other South Carolina artifacts.

In the government-wide statement of activities, the State reports losses on disposal of capital assets as expense of its
General Government function and gains on such disposal as general revenue.

k. Deferred Charges

Deferred costs to be recovered from future revenues of the South Carolina Public Service Authority (a regulated utility
reported as a major discretely presented component unit) are recorded as deferred charges. The Authority’s rates are based
upon debt service and operating fund requirements. The Authority recognizes differences between debt principal maturities
and straight-line depreciation as costs to be recovered from future revenue. The recovery of outstanding amounts recorded as
costs to be recovered from future revenue will coincide with the repayment of the outstanding long-term debt of the
Authority.

Unamortized bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and are amortized as described in Note 1m.

|I. Tax Refunds Payable

Most of the tax refunds payable balance in the General Fund relates to individual income tax. During the calendar year,
the State collects employee withholdings and taxpayers’ payments. Taxpayers file returns by April 15 for the preceding
calendar year. At June 30, the State estimates the amount it owes taxpayers for overpayments during the preceding six
months. The State records this estimated payable as tax refunds payable and a reduction of tax revenues.
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m. Long-Term Obligations

The State records general long-term debt and other long-term obligations of the primary government’s governmental
funds in the governmental activities reported in its government-wide financial statements. Long-term debt and other
obligations financed by proprietary funds are recorded as liabilities in the appropriate funds.

The State defers and amortizes bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, over the life of the bonds
predominantly using the effective interest method. For current refundings and advance refundings resulting in defeasance of
debt, the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt is also deferred and amortized
over the shorter of the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt. The State reports bonds payable net of the
applicable bond premium or discount and deferred amount on refunding. Unamortized issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges.

n. Compensated Absences

During their first ten years of service, most full-time permanent State employees annually earn 15 days of vacation leave
and 15 days of sick leave. After ten years, most employees earn an additional 1.25 days of vacation leave for each year of
service over ten until they reach the maximum of 30 days per year. Sick leave earnings remain at 15 days per year.
Employees may carry forward up to 45 days of vacation leave and 180 days of sick leave from one calendar year to the next.
Upon termination of employment, the State pays employees for accumulated vacation leave at the pay rate then in effect.
Employees do not receive pay for accumulated sick leave when they terminate. However, at retirement, employees
participating in the South Carolina Retirement System and the South Carolina Police Officers’ Retirement System may
receive additional service credit for up to 90 days of accumulated unused sick leave.

The government-wide and proprietary fund statements record an expense and a liability when employees earn
compensated absence credits. Governmental fund financial statements record a liability for compensated absences payable at
June 30 only if the liability for accumulated vacation leave has matured but has not yet been paid at that date (for example, as
a result of employee resignations and retirements). The State does not record a liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave.

0. Net Position and Fund Balance

The State reports a portion of its net position or fund balance in its government-wide and fund financial statements as
restricted. Net position or fund balance, for enterprise or governmental fund types respectively, are reported as restricted
when constraints placed on resource use are either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors,
contributors, laws or regulation of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Enabling legislation authorizes the State to assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandate payments of resources (from
resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable requirement that those resources be used only for the specific purposes
stipulated in the legislation. A legally enforceable requirement is one that an outside party (such as citizens, public interest
groups, or the judiciary) can compel the government to honor. At June 30, 2013, $608.539 million was reported as restricted
net position because of restrictions imposed by enabling legislation.

The State reports other constraints in its fund balance in the governmental funds as committed or assigned. Fund balance
is reported as committed if a state statute or constitutional provision constrains the use of resources of the state. Assigned
fund balance is constrained through appropriation actions of the legislature. Committed constraints can be removed only
through similar action that created the constraint, either legislation amending or repealing the statute or ratification of a
constitutional change by the electorate. The removal of constraints for assigned funds occurs through the budgetary process.

Non-spendable fund balance in the governmental funds reflects the lack of availability in form or substance of the assets
and liabilities reported in the fund to meet obligations of the fund in the near future.

p. Flow Assumption, Net Position or Fund Balance

The State’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted net position or fund balance are available. Within the unrestricted fund balance, committed resources would
be first applied, when available, followed by assigned resources before unassigned resources are used.

g. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

A deferred outflow/inflow of resources is a consumption/acquisition of net assets that is applicable to a future reporting
period. The State has recorded deferred outflows/inflows in connection with interest rate swap agreements and service
concession arrangements reported and explained in these financial statements.

76



State of South Carolina

NOTE 2: ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING CHANGES

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the State implemented the following pronouncements issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB):

Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements (Statement No. 60)
provides guidance related to accounting for and reporting service concession arrangements (SCAs), which are a type of
public-private or public-public partnership. An SCA is an arrangement between a transferor (a government) and an operator
(governmental or nongovernmental entity) in which (1) the transferor conveys to an operator the right and related obligation
to provide services through the use of infrastructure or another public asset (a “facility”) in exchange for significant
consideration and (2) the operator collects and is compensated by fees from third parties. Statement No. 60 applies to
arrangements in which specific criteria determining whether a transferor has control over the facility are met.

Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus (Statement No. 61) modifies certain requirements for
inclusion of component units in the financial reporting entity. For organizations that previously were required to be included
as component units by meeting the fiscal dependency criterion, a financial benefit or burden relationship also would need to
be present between the primary government and that organization for it to be included in the reporting entity as a component
unit. Further, for organizations that do not meet the financial accountability criteria for inclusion as component units but that,
nevertheless, should be included because the primary government’s management determines that it would be misleading to
exclude them, Statement No. 61 clarifies the manner in which that determination should be made and the types of
relationships that should be considered. Statement No. 61 amends the criteria for reporting component units using the
blending method. Statement No. 61 requires blending of component units whose total debt outstanding is expected to be
repaid entirely or almost entirely with resources of the primary government. Statement No. 61 clarifies the types of
relationships that affect the determination of major component units and eliminates the requirement that the determination
include consideration of each component unit’s significance relative to other component units. Based on the new
requirements of Statement No. 61, and a review of the financial reporting entity, state-supported universities and technical
colleges, and certain other business type activities, previously reported as part of the primary government, are reported as
discretely presented component units.

Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989
FASB and AICPA Pronouncements (Statement No. 62) incorporates into the GASB’s authoritative literature the applicable
guidance previously presented in the following pronouncements issued before November 30, 1989: 1) Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, 2) Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and 3) Accounting
Research Bulletins of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ (AICPA) Committee on Accounting
Procedure. Statement No. 62 supersedes Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and
Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, eliminating the election provided in paragraph 7 of that
Statement for enterprise funds and business-type activities to apply post-November 30, 1989 FASB Statements and
Interpretations that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position (Statement No. 63) provides a new statement of net position format to report all assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position (net residual amount). Under Statement No. 63, deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are reported separately from assets and liabilities. Statement No. 63
also amends certain provisions of Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis—for State and Local Governments, and related pronouncements to reflect the residual amount in the statement of
financial position as net position, rather than net assets.
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NOTE 3: DEFICITS OF INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

The accompanying fund financial statements display deficit fund balances and deficit net position balances for individual
major funds, if applicable. Nonmajor funds had the following deficit net position balances (expressed in thousands) at
June 30, 2013:

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds:

Patients' Compensation......................... $ 82,269
Second INjury.....cccceeeeeeeecienieeeeeee 132
Tuition Prepayment Program................ 63,362

Internal Service Funds:
State Accident Fund.............cccvvveennnnen. 29,408

Actions taken to eliminate deficits include increase of existing fees, assessment of additional fees, purchase of excess
loss reinsurance, and implementation of cost containment programs.

NOTE 4: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

By law, all deposits and investments are under the control of the State Treasurer except for those that, by specific
authority, are under the control of other agencies or component units. The deposit and investment policies of those entities
may differ from those of the State Treasurer. Typically, those agencies follow the deposit and investment policies of the
State Treasurer in an effort to minimize deposit and investment risks.

a. Deposits

The following deposits disclosure excludes the primary government’s Pension Trust Funds of the South Carolina
Retirement Systems (the Systems) which are described in section e of this note and the primary government’s Other Post-
Employment Benefit Trust Funds which are described in section f of this note.

Policy

The State’s policy, by law, requires all banks or savings and loan associations that receive State funds deposited by the
State Treasurer, to secure the deposits by deposit insurance, surety bonds, collateral securities, or letters of credit to protect
the State against any loss. Agencies, with specific authority to manage their deposits outside of the State Treasurer, may
have custodial credit risk policies that differ from the State Treasurer. Therefore, some deposits presented below have
custodial credit risk. Note 1, sections d and e explain other policies concerning deposits.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a depository financial institution’s failure, the State will
not be able to recover the value of the deposits with the collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
Deposits include cash and cash equivalents on deposit in banks and non-negotiable certificates of deposit. All deposits under
the control of the State Treasurer are fully insured or collateralized. The reported amount of the State Treasurer’s deposits as
of June 30, 2013 was $468.298 million and the bank balance was $985.402 million. As of June 30, 2013, the reported
amount of the primary government’s deposits outside of the State Treasurer was $146.037 million and the bank balance was
$146.557 million. Of the $135.104 million bank balance exposed to custodial credit risk, $31 thousand was uninsured and
uncollateralized, $12.422 million was uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution,
and $122.651 million was uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent
but not in the State’s name.

As of June 30, 2013, the reported amount of the major discretely presented component units’ deposits was
$421.805 million and the bank balance was $432.508 million. Of the $337.967 million bank balance exposed to custodial
credit risk, $97.148 million was uninsured and uncollateralized, $168.923 millsion was uninsured and collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution, and $71.896 million was uninsured and collateralized with securities held
by the counterparty’s trust department or agent, but not in the State’s name.
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b. Investments

The investment disclosures exclude the primary government’s Pension Trust Funds of the South Carolina Retirement
Systems which are described in section e and the primary government’s Other Post-Employment Benefit Trust Funds which
are described in section f of this note.

Investment Policy

The State’s investment policy by law authorizes investments that vary by fund, but generally include obligations of the
United States and government sponsored entities, obligations of the State of South Carolina and certain of its political
subdivisions, certificates of deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements, certain corporate bonds, and commercial paper.
Substantially all of the State’s investments are presented at fair value. Securities are valued at the last reported sales price as
provided by an independent pricing service. Investment income consists of realized and unrealized appreciation
(depreciation) in the fair value of investments and interest income earned. Other investment policies for the State and its
component units are explained in Note 1, section f.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that in the event of a failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the State
will not be able to recover the value of investments or collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. All of
the State Treasurer’s investments are fully insured or collateralized. Certain agencies, with specific authority, manage their
own investments and may have custodial credit risk policies that differ from the State Treasurer. The primary government’s
investments were not exposed to custodial credit risk. The major discretely presented component unit’s investments that are
exposed to custodial credit risk include investment securities that are uninsured, not registered in the name of the State, and
are held by a counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in a State entity’s name. The primary government holds
investments in U.S treasuries and U.S Agencies, repurchase agreements, and mutual bond funs that are not exposed to
custodial credit risk.

The portion of the State’s major discretely presented component units investments with custodial credit risk is detailed
(expressed in thousands) at June 30, 2013, as follows:

DCU Reported
Investment Type Amount

U.S. treasSUTi€S .iimii i $ 3,928
U.S. ageNCICS ciiiiiiiii i 36.833
Common stock.. ... 828
Money market mutual funds............ 879
Guaranteed investment contracts... 529
(@13 5 1S3 PP 364
B @ ] = 1 = $ 43,361

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations to the State.
Credit risk exposure is primarily limited to debt instruments and other hybrid equity securities. The State Treasurer’s credit
risk policy mitigates potential for loss of principal by purchasing only high investment grade debt securities. In the event that
the rating of a security falls below investment grade, that security may continue to be held contingent upon an evaluation of
the longer term investment merits of the security. Certain agencies, with specific authority to manage their own investments
outside of the State Treasurer, have credit risk policies that differ from that of the State Treasurer. Debt instruments held for
investment for the primary government were rated as of June 30, 2013 using the Standard and Poor’s rating scale or
Moody’s, when no other rating was available, as follows (expressed in thousands):
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Alternative
Rating

Investment Type and Fair Value AAA AA Al Al A2 BBB Agency Not Rated
Asset backed securities..................... $ 4448 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 4,148
Corporate bonds......cccocveeveecencereunenne 50,033 1,500,874 1,537,691 1,144,707 — 197,678
Municipal bonds.......ccccveeveeenieeninennnne 3,705 157,585 557 — — —
Repurchase agreements 6,089 — 1,415,058 — 975,965 295,257
Commercial paper........coceveeerercerecnee — — 3,186,161 5,002 — 20,913
Money market mutual funds............. — — — — — 89,326
Mutual bond funds — — — — — 1,150
Other...oieeicrccccrecereeeeeeaes — — — — 33,700 192

TOtAIS .o $ 64,275 $1,658,459 $6,139,467 $1,149,709 $1,009,665 $ 608,664

At fiscal year end, the Clemson University (June 30, 2013), the State Housing Authority (June 30, 2013), the Medical
University of South Carolina (June 30, 2013), State Ports Authority (June 30, 2013), the Public Service Authority (December
31, 20